
 

 80 William Street 

East Sydney NSW 2011 

Telephone: (02) 8374 6666 

Email: orgs@fwc.gov.au 

 

 
 
 
4 March 2015 
 
 
Mr Jeff Colver 
General Manager Operations  
Master Builders Association of the Northern Territory trading as Master Builders Northern 
Territory  
Sent by email: gmo@mbant.com.au 
  
 
Dear Mr Colver, 
 
Re: Lodgement of Financial Statements and Accounts - Master Builders Association of 
the Northern Territory trading as Master Builders Northern Territory - for year ended 
30 June 2014 (FR2014/140) 
 
I refer to the financial report of the Master Builders Association of the Northern Territory 
trading as Master Builders Northern Territory.  The documents were lodged with the Fair 
Work Commission on 13 January 2015. I also acknowledge receipt of the letter from the 
auditor containing the declaration in relation to the audit of the report, dated 27 February 
2015. The financial report has been filed.     
 
The financial report was filed based on a primary review.  This involved confirming that the 
financial reporting timelines required under s.253, s.265, s.266 and s.268 of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act) have been satisfied, all documents required 
under s.268 of the RO Act were lodged and that various disclosure requirements under the 
Australian Accounting Standards, RO Act and reporting guidelines have been complied with.  
A primary review does not examine all disclosure requirements.  Please note that the 
financial report for the year ending 30 June 2015 may be subject to an advanced compliance 
review.  
 
I raised the following issues in our discussion by telephone last week and confirm the 
following comments to assist you when you next prepare a financial report.  You are not 
required to take any further action in respect of the report lodged.  The Fair Work 
Commission will confirm these matters have been addressed prior to filing next year’s report. 
 
Reports must be provided to Members at least 21 days before the General Meeting of 
Members 
 
The designated officer’s certificate states that the financial report was provided to members 
on 19 September 2014, and presented to a general meeting of members on 26 September 
2014.  Under section 265(5)(a) of the RO Act, where the report is presented to a general 
meeting of members, the report must be provided to members at least 21 days before that 
meeting.   
 
If these dates are correct, the reporting unit only provided members the financial report 7 
days before the general meeting.    I note your explanation about the reworking of the final 
report and also that consideration is being given to altering the rules to facilitate compliance 
with reporting and meeting timeframes in future.    
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Documents must be lodged with the Fair Work Commission within 14 days of General 
Meeting 
 
Section 268 of the RO Act states that the full report and the designated officer’s certificate 
are required to be lodged with the Fair Work Commission within 14 days of the meeting of 
members held for the purposes of section 266.  The Designated Officer’s Certificate indicates 
that this meeting occurred on 26 September 2014.  If this is correct the full report should 
have been lodged with the Fair Work Commission by 10 October 2014.   
 
Please note that in future financial years if the organisation cannot lodge on time, a written 
request for an extension of time, signed by a relevant officer, including any reason for the 
delay, must be made prior to the required date of lodgement. 
 
Should you require further information on the financial reporting requirements of the Act or 
wish to discuss these, I invite you to contact me on (02) 6746 3283 or by email at 
stephen.kellett@fwc.gov.au. 
  
 
Yours sincerely 

 
Stephen Kellett 

Senior Adviser  

Regulatory Compliance Branch 
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From: KELLETT, Stephen
To: "GMO@mbant.com.au"
Cc: "Casmel.Taziwa@bdo.com.au"
Subject: Attention Mr Jeff Colver - financial reporting y/e 30 June 2014 - filing
Date: Wednesday, 4 March 2015 3:54:00 PM
Attachments: MBANT FR2014 140 (primary final).pdf

s253-Reporting-Guidelines-4th-edition (annotated)(MBA NT).pdf

Dear Mr Colver,
 
Please see attached my letter in relation to the above.   For reference when preparing next
year’s report, I also attach an annotated copy of the Reporting Guidelines indicating where the
2015 report should more completely reflect the reporting guideline disclosures.
 
Yours sincerely
 
STEPHEN KELLETT
Regulatory Compliance Branch
FAIR WORK COMMISSION
 
80 William Street
EAST SYDNEY   NSW   2011
 
(ph) (02) 6746 3283
(email) stephen.kellett@fwc.gov.au
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Reporting guidelines for the purposes of section 253 
 


 
Publication history: 


 
First edition:  20 June 2003 


 


Second edition:  
12 October 2004 


Third edition:  
26 June 2013 


 


Fourth edition  13 June 2014 


Relevant 
legislation or 
materials 


Fair Work (Registered 


Organisations) Act 
2009 


 
 
Regulations 2009 


 


 
 
 


Application 
 


1. These reporting guidelines are made under section 255 of the Fair Work (Registered 


Organisations) Act 2009  (the  RO Act). 


 
2. These reporting guidelines apply to all general purpose financial reports (GPFR), 


including a concise financial report, as defined in section 242 of the RO Act except 


where the General Manager has issued a certificate under subsection 270(1) to the 


reporting unit for that financial year. Separate reporting guidelines made under 


section 255 ofthe RO Act for purposes of section 270 apply to a GPFR of a 


reporting unit in relation to the financial year for which a certificate has been issued 


under subsection 270(1). 


 
3. In the event of a conflict between a requirement of these reporting guidelines and a 


requirement of an Australian Accounting Standard, the requirement of the Standard 


prevails unless there has been a determination under section 241 of the RO Act that 


the Standard or the relevant part of the Standard does not apply in relation to an 


organisation or a class of organisations. 
 


Operative date 
 


4. These reporting guidelines apply to each financial year of a reporting unit that ends on 


or after 30 June 2014 


 


Purpose of reporting guidelines 
 


5. These reporting guidelines apply for the purposes of section 253 of the RO Act. 
 


6. Under subsection 253(1) of the RO Act a reporting unit is required to have a GPFR 


prepared. The GPFR must be prepared in accordance with the Australian 


Accounting Standards. These reporting guidelines prescribe disclosure 


requirements in addition to those prescribed by Australian Accounting Standards 
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having in mind the nature of organisations registered under the RO Act. 


 


7.  The disclosure requirements prescribed by these reporting guidelines are directed 


towards providing members of a reporting unit with information to enable them to 


gauge the performance of the committee of management and other holders of 


office in relation to the financial management of the reporting unit. In addition, the 


reporting guidelines seek to improve the quality of information available to users of the 


GPFR about the reporting unit’s economic support of, or economic dependency on, 


other reporting units of the organisation and other entities. 
 


 


General requirements for presentation and disclosures in GPFR 
 


8. It is a requirement that all reporting units apply the Tier 1 reporting requirements as per 


the Australian Accounting Standard AASB1053 Application for Tiers of Australian 


Accounting Standards. ()   


 
9. The reporting unit must disclose in the notes to the financial statements the notice required 


by subsection 272(5) of the RO Act drawing attention to subsections (1), (2) and (3) of 


section 272 and setting out those subsections. () (Note 16) 


 
10. Where a reporting unit’s ability to continue as a going concern is reliant on the agreed 


financial support of another reporting unit(s) this must be disclosed in the notes to the 


financial statement. The reporting unit must disclose: 


 
a) the name of the reporting unit(s) from which the agreed financial support may be 


derived; and 


 
b) the terms and conditions attached to this agreed financial support. 


 


(*)  [none disclosed; no statement that this activity did not occur in accordance with RG 13 below] 


 
11. Where a reporting unit has agreed to provide financial support to ensure another reporting 


unit(s) has the ability to continue as a going concern this must be disclosed in the notes to 


the financial statement. The reporting unit must disclose: 


 
a) the name of the reporting unit(s) to which the agreed financial support is directed; 


 
b) the terms and conditions attached to this agreed financial support. 


 


(*) [none disclosed; no statement that this activity did not occur in accordance with RG 13 below] 


 
12. Where a reporting unit acquires an asset or a liability during the financial year as a result 


of: 


 
a) an amalgamation under Part 2 of Chapter 3, of the RO Act in which the 


organisation (of which the reporting unit form part) was the amalgamated 


organisation; (*) [no disclosure or no statement as per RG 13 identified] or 


 
b) a restructure of the branches of the organisation; (*) [no disclosure or no statement as per RG13 
identified] or 


 
c) a determination by the General Manager under subsection 245(1) of the RO Act of 


an alternative reporting structure for the organisation; (*) [no disclosure or no 
statement as per RG 13 identified] or 


 
d) a revocation by the General Manager under subsection 249(1) of the RO Act of a 


certificate issued to an organisation under subsection 245(1) (*) [no disclosure or no 
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statement as per RG 13 identified] 
the reporting unit must disclose in the notes to the financial statements in respect of each 


such asset or class of assets or each such liability or class of liabilities: 


 
e) date acquired;  (NA) 


 
f) description; (NA)  and  


 


g) name of the entity (including a reporting unit of the organisation or that of another 


organisation) from which it was acquired. (NA) 
 


13. If any of the activities identified in paragraphs 10, 11 and 12 have not occurred in the 
reporting period, a statement to this effect must be included in the GPFR. 


(x)  [see above at Notes 10, 11, 12; no statements included] 


 
Statement of comprehensive income 


 


Revenue 
 


14. Balances for the following items of revenue must be disclosed by the reporting unit in the 


notes to the financial statements, unless already disclosed on the face of the statement of 


comprehensive income in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards: 


 
a) entrance fees or periodic subscriptions (in these guidelines referred to as 


membership subscriptions) in respect of membership of the organisation 


(this item was covered by Note 2(a)) () 


 
b) where, under the rules of the organisation or a branch of the organisation, a 


reporting unit may receive from another reporting unit of the organisation a 


capitation fee 


i. the amount from each reporting unit; and 


ii. the name of each such reporting unit; 
 


  [NA]  [since under the MBA NT rules the organisation does not receive capitation revenue  
this RG is not applicable] 


 


 
c) where compulsory levies are raised from the members or as appeals for voluntary 


contributions (including whip arounds) for the furtherance of a particular purpose 


 
i. the amount; and 


 
ii. a brief description of the purpose of each such levy or appeal; 


 


(*) (none disclosed, and no statement that this source of revenue did not occur, in accordance with RG15 
below)  


 
d) donations or grants (other than voluntary contributions referred to in 


subparagraph c)); 
 


()  (Govt Grants disclosed at Note 2(a) of $465,134 and statement that no donations received at Note 1(v)] 
 


and 


 
e) where the reporting unit is in receipt of any other financial support from another 


reporting unit of the organisation 


 







Published 13 June 2014 www.fwc.gov.au 4/14 


 


i. the name of the reporting unit(s) from which the financial support is derived; and 


 
  ii.  the am ount of financial support derived from the other reporting unit(s).   


 
() [none disclosed; and as the MBA NT is a single reporting unit organisation this RG is not applicable] 


 
15. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 14 have not occurred in the reporting period, a 


statement to this effect must be included in the GPFR.      [x] [no statement that compulsory 


levies or voluntary contributions were not received]  


 
Expense 


 


16. Balances for the following items of expense must be disclosed by the reporting unit in the 


notes to the financial statements, unless already disclosed on the face of the statement of 


comprehensive income in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards: 


 
a) expenses incurred as consideration for employers making payroll deductions of 


membership subscriptions 
 


() (this item was covered by Note 1(v)(ii) which stated no such expense occurred  


 
b) where, under the rules of the organisation or a branch of the organisation, the 


reporting unit must pay to another reporting unit of the organisation a capitation 


fee 
 


i. the amount paid to each entity; and 


 
ii. the name of each entity to which monies were paid; 


 
()  (this RG does not apply because the MBA NT is a single reporting unit organisation and its rules do not 
require it to pay this kind of expense] 


 
 


c) where fees and periodic subscriptions are paid in respect of its affiliation to any 


political party, any federation, congress, council or group of organisations, or any 


international body having an interest in industrial matters 


 
i. the amount paid to each entity; ()  (disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss) and 


 
ii. the name of each entity to which monies were paid; () (Master Builders Inc.) 


d) where compulsory levies have been imposed on the reporting unit, for each such 


levy: 


 
i. the amount; 


 
ii. a brief description of purpose; and 


 
iii. the name of the entity imposing the levy (including another reporting unit of the 


organisation); 
 


(x) (none disclosed and no statement that no expense of this kind did not occur, in accordance with RG 17 
below, was included] 


 


 
e) where grants or donations have been paid  (x*) [* no grants expense disclosed and no statement that 
no grants expense was not made, was included, as required by RG17 below;   however () statement that no 
donations made was included at Note 1(v)(vi)] 
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i. the total amount paid in grants that were $1,000 or less; (x) none disclosed - and no statement 
that nil paid]   


 
  ii.  the total am ount paid in grants that exceeded $1,000; (x) none disclosed and no statement that nil 
paid]     
 
 iii. the total amount paid in donations that were less than $1,000; () [covered by statement that nil 
paid at Note 1(v)(vi)] 


and 


 iv. the total amount paid in donations that exceeded $1,000; () 


[covered by statement that nil paid at Note 1(v)(vi)]  


f) employee expenses related to holders of office of the reporting unit by each of the 
following categories: 


 


i.  wages and salaries () [covered by Note 3 (b)]  


 


ii.  superannuation;  ()[covered by Note 3(b)]  


 


iii. leave and other entitlements; [covered by Note 3 (b)] 


 


iv.separation and redundancies; ()[covered by Note 3 (b)]  


 


v. other employee expenses (specify if material) ()[covered by Note 3 (b)]  
 


g) employee expenses related to employees (other than holders of offices) of the 


reporting unit by each of the following categories: 
 


i. wages and salaries ()[covered by Note 3 (c) and (d)]  


 


ii. superannuation;  ()[covered by Note 3 (c) and (d)]  


 


iii. leave and other entitlements; ()[covered by Note 3 (c) and (d)]  


  


iv.separation and redundancies; ()[covered by Note 3 (c) and (d)] 


 


v. other employee expenses (specify if material  ()[covered by Note 3 (c) and (d)] 


 
 


 
1 


Civil penalty provisions apply. 
 
 


h) fees and/or allowances (other than any amount included in an amount referred to 


in subparagraphs (f) or (g) of this paragraph) paid to persons in respect of their 


attendances as representatives of the reporting unit at conferences or other 


meetings ()[covered by Note 1 (v)(iii)] 


 
i) expenses (other than expenses included in an amount referred to elsewhere in this 


paragraph) incurred in connection with holding meetings of members of the reporting 


unit and any conferences or meetings of councils, committees, panels or other 


bodies for the holding of which the reporting unit was wholly or partly responsible   (x) [no disclosure  
for this item or no statement that this expenses was not incurred was able to be identified] 


 







Published 13 June 2014 www.fwc.gov.au 6/14 


 


j) legal costs and other expenses () [ disclosed at Note 1(v)(iv)] 
   related to: 


 
i. litigation; ()  and 


 


ii. other legal matters;  () 


 
k) penalties imposed on the organisation under the RO Act with respect to conduct of 


the reporting unit.   [this item is covered by Note 1(v)(v)]. () 


 
17. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 16 have not occurred in the reporting period, a 


statement to this effect must be included in the notes to the GPFR. ( x )  [See costs for 
meetings as above] 


 


 


Statement of financial position 
 


18. Where an item is disclosed on the face of the statement of financial position as: 


 
a) a receivable or other right to receive cash;  


or  


b) a payable or other financial liability;  


and 


c) the item or a part of the item has been derived as a result of one or more 


transactions and/or other past events with another reporting unit of the 


organisation, 


 
the following additional disclosures must be made in the notes to the financial statements 


about the item or part of the item: 


 
d) the name of the other reporting unit; () [covered by Note 15(b)(ii) and 


 
e) the amount attributable to the other reporting unit.  () [covered by Note 15(b)(ii)] 


 
19. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 18 have not occurred in the reporting period, a 


statement to the effect must be made in the Notes.    (NA) 


 
Liabilities 


 


20. Total amounts for the following items must be disclosed by the reporting unit in the notes 


to the financial statements, unless already disclosed on the face of the statement of 


financial position in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards: 


 
a) payables to employers as consideration for the employers making payroll 


deductions of membership subscriptions;   () [covered by Note 1(v)(ii)] 


 
b) payables in respect of legal costs and other expenses related to: 


  i.  litigation;  and   
 


ii. other legal matters;  


() [This is covered by Note 1(v)(iv)] 


 
c) employee provisions in respect of holders of offices in the reporting unit by: 


 


i. annual leave;   (this was covered by Note 11(a)) () 
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ii. long service leave;   (this was covered by Note 11(a)) () 
 


iii. separation and redundancies;   (this was covered by Note 11(a) () 


 


iv. other employee provisions;  ;   (this was covered by Note 11(a) () 


and 


 
d) employee provisions in respect of employees (other than holders of offices) of the 


reporting unit by: 
 


i. annual leave; (this is disclosed at Note 11(b)] () 
 


ii. long service leave;   (this is disclosed at Note 11(b)] () 
 


iii. separation and redundancies;   (this is disclosed at Note 11(b)] () 


and 
 


iv. other employee provisions;   (this is disclosed at Note 11(b)] () 


  


21. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 20 have not occurred for the reporting period, a 


statement to this effect must be included in the GPFR.    [NA] 
 


 
 
 
 


Statement of changes in equity 
 


22. Total amounts for the following items must be disclosed by the reporting unit in the notes 


to the financial statements, unless already disclosed on the face of the statement of 


financial position or statement of changes in equity in accordance with Australian 


Accounting Standards: 


 
a) name and balance of each fund or account operated in respect of compulsory levies 


raised by the reporting unit or voluntary contributions collected from members of the 


reporting unit;   (x) [no disclosure of compulsory levies or voluntary contrinutions or 


statement that none received or paid able to be identified]  


 


 


b) where monies, or the balance of monies referred to in subparagraph (a) have been 


invested in any assets:     [see above] [NA] 


 
i. the name of the fund or account; [NA] 


and ii. the value of those assets; [NA] 


c) name and balance of each fund or account operated (other than the general fund 


or a fund referred to in (a)), the operation of which is required by the rules of the 


organisation including the rules of a branch of the organisation;  (x) [no disclosure 


or statement that no other fund required by rules could be identified - see RG23 below] 


 
d) where there has been transfer(s) and/or withdrawal(s) to a fund, account or 


controlled entity, when any of these are kept for a specific purpose(s) by the 


reporting unit:  [                         


 
i. the amount transferred to, or withdrawn; () [see Note 13] 


 
ii. the name of the fund, account or controlled entity; () [see Note 13 “sinking fund”] and 
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iii. the specific purpose of the fund, account or controlled entity; () [see Note 13] and 
 


e) the balance of the general fund.  (This is disclosed in the Equity statement )() 


 
23. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 22 have not occurred in the reporting period, 


a statement to this effect must be included in the GPFR.  [A statement in respect of  (a) and 


(c) should be included in the 2015 report] 
 


 


Statement of cash flows 
 


24. Where another reporting unit and/or controlled entity of the organisation is the source of a 


cash inflow or the application of a cash outflow, such cash flow should be separately disclosed 


either in the cash flow statement or in the notes to the financial statements and show the name of 


the other reporting unit and/or controlled entity concerned. ;   [disclosed at Note 15(c)] () 
 


 
25. If any of the activities identified in paragraph 24 have not occurred in the reporting period, a 


statement to this effect must be included in the notes to the GPFR. [NA] 
 


 
 
 
 
 


Recovery of wages activity financial report 
 


26. Where the reporting unit has undertaken recovery of wages activity and has derived 


revenues for the financial year in respect of such activity, the financial information 


associated with this activity must be disclosed as an additional financial report as 


required by section 253(2)(c) of the RO Act.   [RGS 27-30 below do not apply when  
26 does not apply but see Note 21 in both the amended 2013 and 2014 reports.] 


 
27. The financial report required under paragraph 26 must be prepared and presented in a 


manner consistent with Australian Accounting Standards. 


 
28. Comparatives for the preceding financial year must be disclosed in the financial report 


required under paragraph 26. 


 
 29.  The financial report required under paragraph 26 must be prepared under the accrual basis of accounting. 


 
30. Balances for the following items must be disclosed in the financial report required under 


paragraph 26: 
 


 
Revenue 


 


a) amounts in aggregate recovered from employers in respect of recovery of wages 
activity including the number of workers to which the monies recovered relates; 


and 


 
b) interest received on recovered monies 


 
Expenditure 


 


c) deductions of amounts payable in aggregate in respect of membership of the 


organisation where at the time of deduction the amounts had become payable: 


 
i. 12 months or less; or 


 
ii. greater than 12 months; and 


 
d) deductions of donations or other contributions made to a fund or account: 
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i. of the reporting unit, showing the name and amount in aggregate in respect of each 


such fund or account; and 


ii.    of another reporting unit of the organisation, showing the name of the other reporting 


unit and the name and amount in aggregate in respect of each such fund or account; 


and 


 
iii. of another entity, showing the name of the other entity and the name and amount in 


aggregate in respect of each such fund or account; and 


 
e) deductions in aggregate of fees charged or reimbursements in aggregate of 


expenses incurred by the reporting unit in respect of recovery of wages activity; 


and 


 
f) amounts in aggregate distributed to workers as recovered monies 


 
Assets 


 


g) cash assets, including the name and balance of each fund or account, attributable 


to recovered monies as at the beginning of the financial year; 


 
h) cash assets, including the name and balance of each fund or account, attributable 


to recovered monies as at the end of the financial year; 


 
i) aggregate payables to workers attributable to recovered monies but not yet 


distributed including the number of workers to which the payables relate; and 


 
j) where monies, or the balance of monies have been invested in any assets: 


 
i. the name of the fund or accounts or assets; and 


ii. the value of those assets 


 


 


Additional reporting requirements 
 


31. Where a reporting unit’s financial affairs are administered by another entity (the other 


entity), the reporting unit must disclose in a separate note in the GPFR a detailed 


breakdown of all services provided and/or expenses incurred. This will also include: 
 


a) the name of the other entity; 


 
b) the terms and conditions of the arrangement; 


 
c) a narrative description as to the nature of the expenses and/or consultancy 


services provided 


 
Where applicable, such disclosure shall be in accordance with the disclosure 


requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards, the RO Act and these reporting 


guidelines. [This disclosure does not appear applicable and there is no explicit requirement 


to disclose that it did not apply although such disclosure would be consistent with the rest of 
the Reporting Guidelines] 


 
32. Any payments made during the reporting period to a former related party of the reporting 


unit, where the liability was incurred during the period in which a related party relationship 


existed, must be disclosed under the related party transaction note in the GPFR as   


though the related party relationship existed at the date of payment.
2    


[NA]
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2 
For example, payments of employment entitlements to former officers of the reporting unit 


would fall within this category. 
 


Operating report 
 


33. The operating report must: 


 
a) identify the officer(s) who prepared the report;  () 


 
b) be signed by the officer(s) who prepared the report; () and 


 
c) be dated by each officer who has signed the report as at the date on which the 


officer signs the report. () 
 
 
Committee of management statement 


 


34. For the purposes of paragraph 253(2)(c) of the RO Act, the reporting unit must prepare a 


committee of management statement containing declarations by the committee of 
management in relation to the GPFR. ()  


 
35. The committee of management statement must include declarations by the committee of 


management as to whether in their opinion: 


 
a) the financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting 


  Standards; () (stated] 
 


 


b) the financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the 
General Manager; () (stated) 


 


 
c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, 


financial position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year to which they 


relate; () (stated) 


  


 
d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its 


debts as and when they become due and payable () (stated) 
 


 
e) during the financial year to which the GPFR relates and since the end of that year: 


 
i. meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of the 


organisation including the rules of a branch concerned;   () (stated) 


 and 


 
ii. the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the rules 


of the organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; () (stated) 
and 


 
iii. the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance 


with the RO Act; () (stated) 
 and 


 
iv. where the organisation consists of two or more reporting units, the financial records of 


the reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a manner consistent with 
each of the other reporting units of the organisation; () (stated that not applicable) 


 and 
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v. where information has been sought in any request by a member of the reporting unit or 


General Manager duly made under section 272 of the RO Act, that inform ation has been 


provided to the member or General Manager; () (stated) 


 and 


 
vi. where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair W ork 


Commission under section 273 of the RO Act, there has been compliance. () (stated) 


 
(f) where the reporting unit has not derived revenue from undertaking recovery of wages 


activity, include the statement ‘no revenue has been derived from undertaking recovery 


of wages activity during the reporting period’ () (stated) 


 or 


 
g)  where the reporting unit has derived revenue from undertaking recovery of wages 


activit y:  (NA) 


 
i.    the financial report on recovery of wages activity has been fairly and accurately 


prepared in accordance with the requirements of the reporting guidelines of the 


General Manager; and 


 
 


ii. the committee of management instructed the auditor to include in the scope of the 


audit required under subsection 257(1) of the RO Act all recovery of wages activity 


by the reporting unit from which revenues had been derived for the financial year in 


respect of such activit y; and 


 
iii. no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages activity or 


donations or other contributions were deducted from monies recovered from 


employers on behalf of workers other than as reported in the financial report on 


recovery of wages activit y and the notes to the financial statements; and 


 
iv. that prior to engaging in any recovery of wages activity, the organisation has 


disclosed to members by way of a written policy all fees to be charged or 


reimbursement of expenses required for recovery of wages activit y, and any 


likelyrequest for donations or other contributions in acting for a worker in recovery 
of wages activity; and 


 
v. no fees or reimbursements of expenses in relation to recovery of wages activity or 


donations or other contributions were deducted from monies recovered from 


employers on behalf of workers until distributions of recovered money were made to 


the workers. 


 
36. The committee of management statement must: 


 
a) be made in accordance with such resolution as is passed by the committee of 


management of the reporting unit in relation to the matters requiring declaration; () 


(stated) 
 


 
b) specify the date of passage of the resolution;  () (stated) 


 


 
c) be signed by a designated officer within the meaning of section 243 of the RO Act; 


and ()  [signed) 


 


 
d) be dated as at the date the designated officer signs the statement () [dated) 
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Auditor’s statement 


 


37. The auditor’s statement required under section 257(5) of the RO Act must include a 


declaration as to whether in the auditor’s opinion the GPFR is presented fairly in 


accordance with any of the following that apply in relation to the reporting unit: () 
(stated) 


 


 
a) the Australian Accounting Standards; () 


 
b) in relation to recovery of wages activity;  (NA) 


 
i. that the scope of the audit encompassed recovery of wages activit y; (NA) 


 


 
ii. that the financial statements and notes and recovery of wages activity financial 


report properly and fairly report all information required by the reporting guidelines of 


the General Manager, including:   (NA) 


 
(1)   any fees charged to, or reimbursements of expenses claimed from, members 


and others for recovery of wages activity; and 


(2)   any donations or other contributions deducted from recovered money; and 


c) any other requirements imposed by these Reporting Guidelines or Part 3 of 


Chapter 8 of the RO Act. () (stated) 
 


 
38. The auditor’s statement: 


 
a) must include a declaration that either: 


 


i. the auditor is an approved auditor;  (*) not in original statement but see supplementary letter  


 or 
 


ii. the auditor is a member of a firm where at least one member is an approved auditor (not 
applicable where the previous declaration 38(a)(i) is made); 


and 
 


b) must specify that the auditor: 


 
i. is a person who is a member of CPA Australia, The Institute of Chartered Accountants in 


Australia or the Institute of Public Accountants (formerly the National Institute of Accountants); ;   


(*) not in original statement but see supplementary letter  
and 


 


ii. holds a current Public Practice Certificate;   (*) not in original statement but see supplementary 
letter 


 


 
39. The auditor’s statement must include a declaration, that as part of the audit of the financial 


statements, they have concluded that management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 


in the preparation of the reporting unit’s financial statements is appropriate. () 
[stated]
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Glossary of terms 
 


40. The following terms are used in these reporting guidelines—the meaning of any term 


defined in the Australian Accounting Standards is not modified by the following glossary: 


 
amalgamated organisation has the meaning provided in section 35 of the RO Act. 


 
approved auditor has the meaning set out in regulation 4 of the RO Regulations. 


 
assets are resources controlled by a reporting unit as a result of past events and from 


which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the entity. 


 
Australian Accounting Standards means the accounting standards issued by the 


Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) or issued by CPA Australia and by The 


Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and adopted by the AASB (section 6 of the 


RO Act). 


 
capitation fees mean amounts which, under the rules of the organisation or a branch of 


the organisation, a reporting unit may receive from or pay to another reporting unit of the 


organisation, calculated in accordance with rules of the organisation or branch for the 


purpose of ongoing general administrative expenses. 


 
cash means cash on hand and demand deposits. 


 
cash equivalent means short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 


to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 


value. 


 
cash flow s means inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents. 


 
comparatives mean the corresponding amounts and other disclosures for the preceding 


financial year presented for comparative purposes as part of the current year's financial 


report. 


 
control means the capacity of an entity to dominate decision-making, directly or 


indirectly, in relation to the financial and operating policies of another entity so as to 


enable that other entity to operate with it in achieving the objectives of the controlling 


entity. 


 
control (of an entity) means the power to govern the financial and operating policies of 


an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. 


 
designated officer is an officer of the reporting unit within the meaning of section 243 of 


the RO Act. 


 
employee benefits mean all forms of consideration given by the reporting unit in 


exchange for services rendered by holders of office or employees or for the termination of 


employment. 


 
entity means any legal, administrative, or fiduciary arrangement, organisational structure 


(including a reporting unit of an organisation) or other party (including a person) having 


the capacity to deploy scarce resources in order to achieve objectives. 


 
equity means the residual interest in the assets of the reporting unit after deducting all its 


liabilities. 
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financial records to the extent that they relate to finances or financial administration 


includes: 


 
a)   a register; 


 
b)   any other record of information; 


 
c)   financial reports or financial records, however compiled, recorded or stored; 


 
d)   a document (section 6 of the RO Act). 


 
financial statements comprise a statement of financial position, a statement of 


comprehensive income, a statement of changes in equity, a statement of cash flows and 


any other statement required by the Australian Accounting Standards 


(paragraph 253(2)(a) of RO Act). 


 
financial support means financial resources provided to ensure that the provision of the 


principal activities are possible. 


 
financial year in relation to an organisation means the period of 12 months commencing 


on 1 July in any year, or another period of 12 months as is provided in the rules of the 


organisation (section 6 of RO Act), or a different period in the special circumstances set 


out in section 240 of the RO Act. 


 
general administrative expenses includes expenses in respect of the office of the 


reporting unit, and other expenses that arise at the reporting unit level and relate to the 


reporting unit as a whole. 


 
general fund means the equity of the reporting unit other than in relation to any fund 


operated by the reporting unit for a specific purpose. 


 
general purpose financial report has the meaning set out in subsection 253(2) of the 


RO Act. 


 
grant or donation is taken to have the same meaning as used in section 149 or 


section 237 of the RO Act, though it is not limited by amount. 


 
liabilities are a present obligation of the reporting unit arising from past events, the 


settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the reporting unit of resources 


embodying economic benefits. 


 
membership subscriptions mean entrance fees or periodic subscriptions in respect of 


membership of the organisation. 


 
notes to the financial statements comprise notes required by Australian Accounting 


Standards and information required by the reporting guidelines (paragraph 253(2)(b) of 


the RO Act). 


 
organisation means an organisation registered under the RO Act. 


 
other entity includes another reporting unit, a state association, a transitionally 


recognised association, external entity or other controlled entity of the reporting unit. 


 
payables are amounts owed by the reporting unit to other entities for goods or services 


delivered. 
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prescribed designated officer for the purposes of paragraph 268(c) of the RO Act 


means: 


 
a) the secretary; or 


 
b) an officer of the organisation (or reporting unit) other than the secretary who is 


authorised by the organisation or by the rules of the organisation to sign the 


certificate. 
 


RO Act means the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 


 
RO Regulations means the Fair W ork (Registered Organisations) Regulations 2009 


 
receivables are amounts owed to the reporting unit by other entities (including members 


of the reporting unit) for goods or services delivered (including membership 


subscriptions). 


 
recovery of wages activity means work by the organisation to recover from employer’s 


money due and payable to workers under awards, industrial instruments as prescribed in 


the Fair Work Act 2009 and contracts of employment. 


 
related party has the meaning set out as per the Australian Accounting Standards. 


 
reporting unit has the meaning set out in section 242 of the RO Act. 


 
revenue are inflows or other enhancements, or savings in outflows of future economic 


benefits in the form of increase in assets or reductions in liabilities of the reporting unit 


that result in an increase in equity during the financial year. 


 
rules of an organisation are the rules that an organisation must have under Chapter 5, 


Part 2 of the RO Act. 


 
whip around means the collection of monies, whether on one or more occasions and 


whether voluntary or compulsory, by an officer or member of the reporting unit for the 


purpose of providing financial support to member(s) of the reporting unit and/or assisting 


the reporting unit to carry out the registered organisation’s objects as set out in its rules. 


 
workers means, in the context of recovery of wages activity, an employee who may or 


may not be a member of the organisation engaging in the recovery of wages activity. 
 


 


 
Bernadette O’Neill 
General Manager 







From: KELLETT, Stephen
To: KELLETT, Stephen
Subject: FW: 2013-2014 audit statement - Master Builders" Association Northern Territory
Date: Friday, 27 February 2015 1:57:31 PM
Attachments: Auditor"s Declaration.pdf

From: Casmel Taziwa [mailto:Casmel.Taziwa@bdo.com.au] 
Sent: Friday, 27 February 2015 12:16 PM
To: KELLETT, Stephen
Subject: RE: 2013-2014 audit statement - Master Builders' Association Northern Territory
 
Dear Stephen,
 
Please find attached the document which has been forwarded to the Association in relation to
declaration required by the Reporting Guidelines.
 
From my discussions with the Jeff, it was agreed for us to issue a separate declaration as
attached. I hope that it covers off on the requirements as previously advised.
 
 
Regards

CASMEL TAZIWA
Associate - Audit and Assurance
Casmel.Taziwa@bdo.com.au
 
BDO
72 Cavenagh Street
Darwin  NT  0801
AUSTRALIA
Office +61 8 8981 7066
Fax +61 8 8981 7493
www.bdo.com.au

P Before you print think about the environment.
 
Now available: Keep up-to-date on the latest technical information and thought leading
material direct to your iPad - download the BDO Australia iPad App here. 
 

mailto:/O=AIR/OU=NSW01/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=KELLET
mailto:Stephen.KELLETT@fwc.gov.au
mailto:Casmel.Taziwa@bdo.com.au
http://www.bdo.com.au/
https://itunes.apple.com/au/app/bdo-australia/id602616876?mt=8&ign-mpt=uo%3D4







IBDO 

Our Ref: MAS31/ 418576_1 

27 February 2015 

The Directors 

Tel: +61 8 8981 7066 
Fax: +61 8 8981 7493 
www.bdo.com.au 

Master Builders Association of Northern Territory Inc 
POBox37121 
Winnellie NT 0821 

Dear Sirs 

72 Cavenagh St 
Darwin NT 0800 
GPO Box 4640 Darwin NT 0801 
AUSTRALIA 

AUDITOR DECLARATION TO THE FAIRWORK COMMISSION IN RELATION TO THE AUDIT 
OF MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY 

In accordance with Reporting Guideline 38, I make the following declaration in 
connection with the audit of your organisation for the year ended 30 June 2014: 

I am an approved auditor as defined in the Regulation Guide and the following details 
relate to my status as an auditor: 

• Registered with Australian Securities and Investment Commission as a Registered 
Company Auditor, Registration Number 16; 

• Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Australia, Registration 
Number 29094; and 

• Holder of a current Public Practice Certificate as issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Australia, Registration Number 29094. 

Yours faithfully 

C J Sciacca 
Audit Partner 

BOO Audit (NT) ABN 98 944 751 649 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BOO Australia Ltd ABN 77 050 
110 275, an Australian company limited by guarantee. BOO Audit (NT) and BOO Australia Ltd are members of BOO International Ltd, a UK company limited 
by guarantee, and form part of the International BOO network of independent member ftrms. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional 
Standards Legislation (other than for the acts or omissions of financial services licensees) in each State or Territory other than Tasmania. 



From: KELLETT, Stephen
To: "GMO@mbant.com.au"
Subject: FW: Attention Mr Jeff Colver - Master Builders Association Northern Territory - financial reporting y/e 30

June 2014 - attachments
Date: Thursday, 19 February 2015 11:53:00 AM
Attachments: MBANT FR2012 452 letters.pdf

Dear Mr Colver,
 
Please see attachments, as referred to in my earlier email below.
 
Yours sincerely
 
STEPHEN KELLETT
Regulatory Compliance Branch
FAIR WORK COMMISSION
 
80 William Street
EAST SYDNEY   NSW   2011
 
(ph) (02) 6746 3283
(email) stephen.kellett@fwc.gov.au
 

From: KELLETT, Stephen 
Sent: Thursday, 19 February 2015 11:24 AM
To: 'GMO@mbant.com.au'
Subject: Attention Mr Jeff Colver - Master Builders Association Northern Territory - financial
reporting y/e 30 June 2014 - action required
 
Dear Mr Colver,
 
I refer to the financial report lodged on 13 January 2015 and to several matters for
action/advice.
 
1.           Compliance with previous advice
 
The report reflects all the required disclosures or information brought to the attention of the
organisation in correspondence in relation to the previous report (i.e. for the year ended 30
June 2013) except for the repeat omission from the auditor’s statement of the declaration
required by Reporting Guideline 38 which states:
 

38.      The auditor’s statement:
a)        must include a declaration that either:

i.     the auditor is an approved auditor; or
ii.     the auditor is a member of a firm where at least one member is an approved auditor;

and
 

b)        must specify that the auditor:
i.     is a person who is a member of CPA Australia, The Institute of Chartered

Accountants in Australia or the Institute of Public Accountants (formerly the
National Institute of Accountants); and

ii.     holds a current Public Practice Certificate.
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·          whether you have provided us with all the relevant and correct information about your situation;
·          changes in your circumstances; and
·          changes in the law.


 
It is your responsibility to comply with workplace laws that apply to you.
 
MBANT’s information is not legal advice and MBANT does not accept legal liability arising from or connected to the
accuracy, reliability, currency or completeness of this information. Therefore, you may wish to seek independent professional
advice to ensure all  the factors relevant to your circumstances have been properly considered.
 







From: KELLETT, Stephen
To: "Jeff Colver"
Subject: RE: Provision of Signed Financial Statements to Members 2011-2012
Date: Wednesday, 24 July 2013 11:04:25 AM


Dear Jeff,
 
Thanks for your email with attachments.
 
I just have two comments.  Firstly, I note the “no sooner than 14 days or later than 28 days”
provision in the rules.  It certainly gives rise to potential for contravening the “21 days”
provision in section 265(5).  In that sense, the provision is less than desirable and were it to be
proposed now would not be certified.   It is of course still possible for the organisation to
observe both the rule and s265(5) by simply ensuring it holds the Annual General Meeting no
earlier than 21 days after.   But the variance is certainly there.  The Act does not place an
outside limit on the period equivalent to the “no later than 28 days” of the rule, but in the
normal course of events, your organisation desires Annual General Meetings (‘second
meetings’) to be held by 30 September and the Act requires second meetings to be held within
6 months, so in a sense your rule provides for a tighter time frame than the Act at the ‘other
end’.
 
Secondly, I note that your constitution is undergoing a re-write and will reflect the provisions of
section 265.  When you have produced a final draft version of the new Constitution,  I invite
you, if you so wish, to forward it to FWC for brief preliminary  feedback before you take it to the
Board for resolution.  That way, if anything else might usefully be clarified and modified, it can
be identified.
 
Now, what is required now, for the 2012 report?  
 
Apart from the issue of the timing of the Annual General Meeting – the second meeting for
presentation under s266 purposes - it is clear, at least on the face of the documents, from the
Committee Statement and the dating of the Auditor’s report and the operating report on the
18 September, that the organisation held its first meeting and signed off on the report after it
apparently “provided” them to the members.   This is a significant defect in the final reporting
sequence in the sense that it is only the signatures of the Committee and the auditor that
validate the documents provided to members.   This is why reports and financial statements
must only be provided to members in their final form i.e. after they have been signed at or
soon after the first meeting of the Committee.
 
What I will require from the organisation is a letter from the President or prescribed officer
confirming that members currently have access to the final signed version of the 2012 financial
statements and an undertaking that (1) future reports (including auditor’s reports) will be
signed at or after the first meeting; (2) that the first meeting and the signing of the documents
will take place before they are subsequently provided to members and (3), that the second
meeting, being the Annual General Meeting, will not take place until at least 21 days have
elapsed following the provision to members.
 
Please ring me if you need to clarify anything further.
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Yours sincerely
 
Stephen Kellett
Fair Work Commission
 
   
 







EXTRACT FROM MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION OF THE NORTHERN 
TERRITORY’S CONSTITUTION 


 
18. ANNUAL MEETING. 


 
(a) An Annual Meeting of members shall take place not later than on 30 September of each 


year: 


Provided that such Annual Meeting shall take place not sooner than 14 days nor later than 28 
days after the date on which the financial statements of the Association have been 
forwarded to members pursuant to Rule 3 1.  At this meeting, the audited Balance Sheets 
and Revenue Statement shall be presented, together with a Presidential Report.  The 
declaration of the result of the election of Councillors for the ensuing year shall be made by 
the CEO. 


(b) Such other business as the Council may refer to this meeting shall also be dealt with at the 
Annual Meeting. Provided, however, that only that business which is clearly set forth on the 
notice of meeting shall be dealt with.  


(c) At least seven days prior to the date of the Annual Meeting, the CEO shall forward   a circular 
to each member of the Association.  Such circular shall request the member's attendance at 
the meeting and shall clearly set forth the business to be transacted. 


(d) Ten (10) Full Members shall form a quorum at the Annual Meeting. 


 


EXTRACT FROM THE FAIR WORK REGISTERED ORGANISATIONS ACT 


Division 5—Reporting requirements 


265 Copies of full report or concise report to be provided to members 


             (1)  A reporting unit must provide free of charge to its members either: 


                     (a)  a full report consisting of: 


(i) a copy of the report of the auditor in relation to the inspection and audit of the 


 financial records of the reporting unit in relation to a financial year; and 


                             (ii)  a copy of the general purpose financial report to which the report relates; and 


                            (iii)  a copy of the operating report to which the report relates; or 


                     (b)  a concise report for the financial year that complies with subsection (3). 


Note:          This subsection is a civil penalty provision (see section 305). 
             (2)  A concise report may only be provided if, under the rules of the reporting unit, the committee of 


     management of the reporting unit resolves that a concise report is to be provided. 
             (3)  A concise report for a financial year consists of: 
                     (a)  a concise financial report for the year drawn up in accordance with the regulations; and 
                     (b)  the operating report for the year; and 
                     (c)  a statement by the auditor: 
                              (i)  that the concise financial report has been audited; and 
                             (ii)  whether, in the auditor’s opinion, the concise financial report complies with the relevant 
Australian Accounting Standards; and 







                     (d)  a copy of anything included under subsection 257(5), (6) or (7) in the auditor’s report on the full 
report; and 
                     (e)  a statement that the report is a concise report and that a copy of the full report and auditor’s report 
will be sent to the member free of charge if the member asks for them. 
             (4)  If a member requests a copy of the full report and auditor’s report, as mentioned in paragraph (3) (e), the 
reporting unit must send those reports to the person within 28 days of the request being made. 
Note:          This subsection is a civil penalty provision (see section 305). 
             (5)  The copies referred to in subsection (1) must be provided within: 
                     (a)  if a general meeting of members of the reporting unit to consider the reports is held within 6 months 
after the end of the financial year—the period starting at the end of the financial year and ending 21 days before 
that meeting; or 
                     (b)  in any other case—the period of 5 months starting at the end of the financial year. 
The General Manager may, upon application by the reporting unit, extend the period during which the meeting 
referred to in paragraph (a) may be held, or the period set out in paragraph (b), by no more than one month. 
Note:          This subsection is a civil penalty provision (see section 305). 
             (6)  Where a reporting unit publishes a journal of the reporting unit that is available to the members of the 
reporting unit free of charge, the reporting unit may comply with subsection (1): 
                     (a)  by publishing in the journal the full report; or 
                     (b)  by preparing a concise report as described in subsection (3) and publishing the concise report in the 
journal. 
             (7)  Where a reporting unit consists of 2 or more branches of an organisation and one of those branches 
publishes a journal of the branch that is available to the members of the branch free of charge, the reporting unit 
may comply with subsection (1) in relation to those members: 
                     (a)  by publishing in the journal the full report; or 
                     (b)  by preparing a concise report as described in subsection (3) and publishing the concise report in the 
journal. 


 







 


 Terrace Towers 
80 William Street 


East Sydney NSW 2011 


Telephone: (02) 8374 6666 
International: (612) 8374 6666 


Facsimile: (02) 9380 6990 
Email: sydney@fwc.gov.au 


 


 
 
 
 
20 June 2013  


Mr Jeff Colver 
General Manager Operations 
Master Builders Association Northern Territory 
Lot 1450 Winnellie Road 
Winnellie   NT   0821 


Via post and email:  gmo@mbant.com.au 
 
 
Dear Mr Colver, 
 
RE:  Financial accounts and statements - Master Builders Association Northern 
Territory - for year ending 30 June 2012 (FR2012/452) 
  
I refer to the above financial accounts and statements which were lodged with the Fair Work 
Commission on 24 January 2013.     
 
The documents included a Designated Officer’s Certificate signed by the President, Mr Dick Guit, 
on 22 October 2012 (see copy attached).  The certificate certified that the report was provided to 
the members on 13 September 2012, which was 5 days before the date on which key 
documents, including the Auditor’s Report, the Committee of Management Statement and the 
Operating Report, were signed.   Since these documents form part of the full report which must 
be provided to the members, pursuant to subsection 265(1) of the Act, a question immediately 
arises as to how the organisation complied with this provision, and I have not received further 
advice confirming whether members received or have access to the fully signed documents 
comprising the report.   
 
The certificate also certified that the report was presented to the Annual General Meeting on 28 
September 2012, which was a date only 15 days after the date on which the said report was 
provided to members.   Since paragraph 265(5)(a) requires reports to be provided to members 
21 days prior to presentation to a general meeting, it appears clear that the organisation has not 
complied with this provision. 
 
The certificate was signed and dated on 22 October 2012. It referred to lodgement of the 
documents on 19 October 2012, some 21 days after the meeting at which the report was 
presented.  FWC’s record of the lodgement of the report was not until 24 January 2013; however, 
even if the financial report was lodged on the earlier date the organisation did not comply with 
section 268 which requires the report to be lodged, with the certificate, within 14 days of the 
meeting at which the report was presented. 
 
I note that the correspondence by FWC in relation to the previous year’s financial return identified 
not dissimilar issues (see copy enclosed).  The provision of all financial documents to members 
prior to presentation at a general meeting in the correct sequence goes directly to the legislative 
object of “high standards of accountability of organisations to their members”1 and the dating of 


                                                
1 See subsection 5(3) of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 for all the objects. 







the key documents and the certificate of prescribed designated officer is the principal statement 
of compliance.  
 
All the statements and documents comprising the full report must be signed and dated before 
being provided to the members and presentation at a general meeting must not occur until the 
prescribed provision period has elapsed. 
 
Before filing the report for the year ended 30 June 2012, however, I request written confirmation 
by the organisation that the members have or have had either electronic access to, or have 
physically received, the full report including the signed Auditor’s report, Committee of 
Management Statement and Operating Report which were dated 18 September 2012.   
 
If your records show that any of the statements on the prescribed designated officer’s certificate 
previously lodged are incorrect, and/or that the organisation has in fact complied with 
subsections 265(1) and 265(5), I would ask that an amended certificate be lodged.  Otherwise, 
this is not necessary.  
 
If you have any queries regarding this letter, please don’t hesitate to contact me on (02) 6723 
7237 or by email at stephen.kellett@fwc.gov.au. 
 
 
Yours faithfully,  
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
Stephen Kellett 
Regulatory Compliance Branch 
 
 
cc: C J Sciacca 
 Audit Partner 
 BDO 
 GPO Box 4640 
 Darwin  NT  0801 











FWC requires correction of any matter previously brought to a reporting unit’s attention before
it will close a financial report file.  Accordingly, I would ask that you raise this with the Auditor
and forward to me a fresh version of his signed Auditor’s statement that includes the above at
the earliest practicable opportunity.    This correction will have no effect on the Auditor’s
opinion.
 
2.           Supply of signed financial statements – time frame
 
The designated officer’s certificate states that the financial report was provided to members on
19 September 2014, and presented to a general meeting of members on 26 September 2014. 
Under section 265(5)(a) of the RO Act, where the report is presented to a general meeting of
members, the report must be provided to members at least 21 days before that meeting. 

If these dates are correct, the reporting unit only provided members the financial report 7 days
before the general meeting.

This issue was raised in my correspondence in relation to the report for the year ended 30 June
2012 (see attached).  In his response (see attached), the President of the organisation
acknowledged a conflict between the organisation’s constitution and s265(5) and indicated not
only that the organisation would ensure a 21 day interval between provision of the information
and the holding of the AGM, but that the relevant rule would be altered in a re-write of the
constitution.    I have been unable to identify any relevant alteration to the organisation’s rule.

Accordingly, I request your advice as to why the organisation did not comply with section 265(5)
in this regard, for the 2014 report, and as to the organisation’s intention regarding its rules.

Please note that subsection 265(5) is a civil penalty provision and future failure to meet this
timelines may result in an inquiry into the organisation and the General Manager of the FWC
may apply under s.310(1) of the RO Act to the Federal Court of Australia for a pecuniary penalty
order to be imposed on your organisation and, potentially, an officer whose conduct led to the
non-compliance.

3.           Lodgement after presentation meeting – time frame

Section 268 of the RO Act states that the full report and the designated officer’s certificate are
required to be lodged with the Fair Work Commission within 14 days of the meeting of
members.  Since the AGM occurred on 26 September 2014, the full report should have been
lodged with the Fair Work Commission by 10 October. 

The full report was lodged on 13 January 2015, three months later than the time ordinarily
prescribed.   The organisation should have applied for an extension of time to lodge the required
reports and the designated officer’s certificate.

Accordingly, I request your advice as to the reason for the delay in lodgement in accordance
with section 268 of the RO Act.

Please note that in future financial years if the organisation cannot lodge on time, a written
request for an extension of time, signed by a relevant officer, including any reason for the delay,
must be made prior to the required date of lodgement.

Please don’t hesitate to contact me if you have any queries.

Yours sincerely

 



 
 
STEPHEN KELLETT
Senior Adviser, Regulatory Compliance Branch
FAIR WORK COMMISSION
 
80 William Street
EAST SYDNEY   NSW   2011
 
(ph) (02) 6746 3283
(email) stephen.kellett@fwc.gov.au
 

mailto:stephen.kellett@fwc.gov.au


From: KELLETT, Stephen
To: KELLETT, Stephen
Subject: FW: On CMS FR2014/140 Lodgement of Audited Financial Reports for the year ended 30 June 2014
Date: Wednesday, 14 January 2015 5:53:49 PM
Attachments: Designated Officer"s Certificate to accompany General Purpose Financial Reports 2013-2014-Lodged 13

Jan. 2015.pdf
MBANT Annual Report 2013-2014-Electronic PDF Version.pdf
MBANT General Purpose Financial Statements-2013-2014 Electronic PDF Version.pdf
MBANT AGM 2013-2014 Minutes (Final) - 2014.pdf
1st and 2nd Notice of AGM and GPFR Sept. 2014.pdf
Amendment to Notice of Annual General Meeting - Friday, 26th Sept 2014.pdf
MBANT Members Bulletin-4 Sept. 2014-Notice of Annual General Meeting for 2014.pdf
Proof of Notice of AGM and Disclosure of Audited Financial Statements-19 Sept 2014.pdf
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png

From: Jeff Colver [mailto:GMO@mbant.com.au] 
Sent: Tuesday, 13 January 2015 6:14 PM
To: Orgs
Subject: On CMS FR2014/140 Lodgement of Audited Financial Reports for the year ended 30 June
2014
 
FR2014/140
 
Good afternoon Fair Work Commission
 
Please find various attachments which collectively make up the lodgement of the Audited
Financial Statements for the Master Builders Association of the Northern Territory Incorporated
trading as Master Builders NT for the year ended 30 June 2014.
 
Cheers
 
Jeff Colver | General Manager MBANT/Manager Fidelity Fund

  11/396 Stuart Hwy, Winnellie NT 0820 | PO Box 37121, Winnellie NT 0820

   T (08) 8922 9666 | F (08) 8922 9600 | M 0427 096 879

  “Building the Territory” : gmo@mbant.com.au | : www.mbant.com.au

 

Important note: Disclaimer

 
Master Builders NT is committed to providing useful, reliable information to help you understand your rights and

obligations under workplace laws. 

 
There are a number of factors that might affect the applicability of the information written here. These include:

·           whether you have provided us with all  the relevant and correct information about your situation;
·           changes in your circumstances;  and
·           changes in the law.

 
It is your responsibility to comply with workplace laws that apply to you.

 
MBANT’s information is not legal advice and MBANT does not accept legal liability arising from or connected to the

accuracy, reliability, currency or completeness of this information. Therefore, you may wish to seek independent

professional advice to ensure all  the factors relevant to your circumstances have been properly considered.

 
 
 

 

mailto:/O=AIR/OU=NSW01/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=KELLET
mailto:Stephen.KELLETT@fwc.gov.au
mailto:GMO@mbant.com.au
http://cmsplus/cmsplus/AirMatter.do?method=load&key=1113741
mailto:gmo@mbant.com.au
http://www.mbant.com.au/
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Dick Guit - General Manager, Sitzler Pty Ltd 







The role of industry associations of all shapes and 
sizes continues to evolve, much like our own busi-
nesses.  Technology is creating new ways to deliver 
services, while at the same time making other 
services redundant overnight, thanks to access to 
so much information online.  Likewise, some of our 
activities continue to stand the ‘test’ of time and 
remain ‘core’ to our work, and others clearly not.


Master Builders NT has now been providing services 
to our industry for more than 40 years.  The national 
MBA movement has been doing it for even longer, 
and is about to celebrate its 125th birthday next 
year.  And you don’t reach either of those mile-
stones without a refresh or two along the way.


2013/14 proved to be a year when some of that 
occurred through strategy and some of it was forced 
on us by events.  But all in all, that is the way of 
business today, and the test of any organisation is 
how well it manages all of those forces for change.


The most signifi cant shift in our activities was the 
completion of our fi rst full year in providing the 
Fidelity Fund with all of the services it requires to 
operate.  That includes Fund management and 
administration, and Actuarial, Assessor, Audit 
and fi eld services.  Our staff and our contractors 
have completed an outstanding year, absorbing 
almost double the anticipated throughput thanks 
to strong activity in the residential sector.  I also 
extend my thanks to MBA ACT, who have provided 
their systems to underpin our work, allowing us to 
leverage their decade long experience in this space.


It was also a year when we lost one of our good 
friends in our Executive Director, Graham Kemp.  
Graham’s commitment to this organisation was 
unquestionable, and his passion for our industry 
unwavering.  Much has been said in recent times 
about Graham, as it should.  I would just like to use 
this opportunity to acknowledge his broader legacy 
and his leadership during very challenging times.


I also want to acknowledge two key partner-
ships that have made a substantial difference in 
the delivery of services to our members.  The fi rst 


is with the Department of Infrastructure and the 
second is with the Department of Business.  Both 
organisations have been very good supporters of 
this Association and the work it does, and both 
have the advantage of key people who under-
stand what makes industry and business tick.


2013/14 was also an interesting year for our industry.  
Overall, Darwin performed very strongly, while in the 
regions things were very fl at and challenging.  Even 
in Darwin, some segments performed very strongly, 
while others have had to deal with declining levels 
of activity.  I suppose this is the reality of such a 
large industry these days, with up to one person 
in nine now linked to our industry in some way.


Having said that, Building and Construction continues 
to provide tremendous lifelong opportunities to all 
that choose this career path.  And we rely on our 
Association to provide the right mix of services to 
help navigate what is an increasingly complex world.  
In my view, we aren’t too bad at that – but we must 
continue to strive to lift the ‘bar’ across the board.


I am very confi dent that we will do that too!  Not 
just because of our team within Master Builders, 
but because of our structure, where members play 
such a pivotal role in our strategy and our decision 
making.  Nothing helps to refresh an organisa-
tion like direct engagement by its members.


Finally, I would like to take a moment to thank and 
acknowledge our staff, Executive Committee, our 
Council, and all of our representatives on other 
organisations, Councils and Advisory Commit-
tees.  Your contributions make a real and tangible 
difference.  And your time, knowledge and expe-
rience have helped shape our industry.  As 
they say, its people that make the difference!
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Vale - Graham 
Kemp


9 April, 1947 - 23 June, 2014







In October, 2013, Master Builders Executive Director Graham Kemp took ill while on a return fl ight from a 
business trip to Alice Springs.  From that point on, Graham proceeded on extended sick leave before fi nishing up 
with Master Builders in February, 2014.  Unfortunately, Graham subsequently passed away on 23 June, 2014.


Graham Kemp joined Master Builders in February, 2008 after a diverse career including building, real estate, 
small business and representative associations.


He would have been the very fi rst to admit that he had fi nally landed the job that fi tted him best.  He loved the Territory and 
the construction industry, and he had a natural connection with the values and ideals of the Master Builders movement.


Many members would remember that they were also challenging times back in 2008 – the organisation needed to 
refresh and to set a new direction if it was to keep supporting its members.  Graham understood this well, and embarked 
on a process of building a platform for change, before making the changes that would build the organisation of today.


Each leader does that in their own way.  In Graham’s case, his great strengths around people came to 
the fore as he worked on the crucial relationships necessary for a successful Association and business.


In partnership with his team within Master Builders, they set about expanding the services on 
offer to members as well as delivering on genuine and lasting reform for the construction industry. 


Graham was an ambassador to the Northern Territory building industry networking with politicians and other industries.


The Chief Minister recognised this, in his notice in the NT News post Graham’s passing, saying ‘Graham was a 
great leader and a champion of the building industry, deeply committed to making the Territory a better place’.


Graham balanced his responsibilities with a keen commitment to the wider Territory community, with deep 
and unswerving support for organisations like the:


• Australia Day Council;


• Heart Foundation;


• Defence Reserves;


• Housing Appeals Board;


• NT Build; and,


• ICN NT.


Graham leaves behind a tremendous legacy from his efforts to make the Territory a better place.  


In the end, we all judge our lives by many different tests, but one is defi nitely what mark we leave behind on 
other people.  And it was here that Graham demonstrated that while he was short in stature, he was a giant 
amongst people.


The proof of this was immediate when, from the moment news spread that he had fallen ill, a wave of 
concern and best wishes fl owed into the offi ces of Master Builders from across the Territory and Australia.  


On behalf of all of the members of Master Builders NT, we extend our condolences to Graham’s family.


A truly great friend.
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Executive 
Directors Report


David Malone - Executive Director, 


Master Builders NT







Introduction


It can be easy to start off these reports by jumping straight into providing an account of everything 
that occurred in the previous year.  While I accept that it is the purpose of these reports to an 
extent, I also think that the most important fi rst step is to restate the purpose of this Association.


Master Builders NT is your organisation.  It exists to support you as members and it is governed 
by an Executive Committee and Council made up exclusively of your fellow members.


In what I think is one of its greatest attributes, it can claim to have a membership that truly refl ects 
the Building and Construction industry in the Northern Territory.


My role and that of our staff is delivery.  We turn your aspirations and needs into actions.  


The Associations primary goal is to be your ‘business partner’.  And that delivers the inevitable 
challenge of tailoring our services to meet the needs of a membership spread across all sectors 
- and from very small businesses to some of the largest construction organisations in Australia.


We are able to do this thanks to 3 key dimensions of this business.  


First, our direct investment in our staff and systems within our offi ce in Darwin.  Next, we are 
part of a Federation of ten Master Builder businesses across Australia, which means that we can 
leverage the expertise and capacity of a movement delivering services to 30,000 members.  And 
fi nally, Master Builders NT generates a signifi cant proportion of its revenue outside of member-
ship fees, helping to keep those fees down and the quality of its services up!


Performance


Your Association performed strongly in 2013/14 as you will see from our accounts contained further 
on in this annual report.  That result refl ected a range of strategic decisions taken by your Execu-
tive Committee in the preceding years, designed to re-position the organisation – a program that 
is still very much underway.


That re-positioning is focused on controlling the cost pressures on members by generating revenue 
from a diversifi ed mix of activities.  It won’t surprise you to know, that all Associations are travel-
ling down pretty much this same route.  As the world becomes increasingly complex, the cost of 
running a professional organisation continues to climb.  Very simply, diversifi cation is the differ-
ence between the doors remaining open and not.


The true test for this strategy is ensuring that those other activities are closely tied to the genuine 
interests of members.
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Today, Master Builders NT has built revenue streams from activities such as:


• Insurance Services, via MBAIS;


• Fund Management, for the Fidelity Fund;


• Accredited and non-accredited training;


• Events and networking opportunities to bring members together;


• Apprenticeship mentoring;


• Industrial Relations and Safety Services; and,


• Dispute Resolution Services.


You will fi nd reports on those activities further on in this Annual Report.


People


People sit at the core of the capacity of any services business, and Master Builders 
NT is no different.


This year, the Association was thrown a major challenge with the sudden illness of 
its Executive Director, Graham Kemp.  It is a tribute to the team that Graham had 
built, that the organisation continued to perform to its normal high standards during 
this diffi cult time.


My role was as caretaker manager and I really want to acknowledge the wider Master 
Builders Team for their professionalism during this time, particularly our staff, the 
Executive Committee and Council.


2013/14 Highlights


Some of the key successes this year have been:


• Hosting the National Master Builders meetings in Darwin;


• Hosting one of the largest Industry Events in our Excellence in Building &            
 Construction Awards;


• Conducting two fully subscribed Cert IV in Building and Construction                            
 Training Courses;


• Our regional visits program;


• The program of White Card, Test & Tag and other accredited and non-accred 
 ited training;


• Bedding down the Fidelity Fund;







• Our participation in the national debate around industrial reform; and,


• The performance of our CAM’s (Construction Apprenticeship Mentioning) program.


LOOKING FORWARD


I am very proud to have been given the opportunity by the Association to lead its activities in the 
coming year.  Our focus will continue to be on:


• Getting close to members to understand how we can help your business;


• Improving our business systems, to lower costs and improve our service quality; and,


• Representing the interests of the Building and Construction industry more widely.


The foundation for this work is a major investment in our Information Technology Management 
Systems.  It will deliver the processes to connect with members and tailor our service offerings.


Members will also see an expansion of our training and information services and regional visits will 
remain a high priority.


We are anticipating some slowing in construction activity and that will place increased pressure on 
Master Builders revenues, just as it does for our members.  Our goal is to continue with our diversi-
fi cation program at one level – and to connect with key investors as they contemplate their delivery 
programs at another.
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Northern Territory – after the boom?


The NT economy experienced a surge in investment driven by the Inpex Project. The turnaround fuelled an 
upturn in building and construction that boosted net interstate migration and fl owed through to the wider economy. 


There is an unusually high degree of risk attached to the Territory forecasts, with industry activity expected to 
be affected as stimulus from the Inpex project begins to fade.


NT Building and Construction Forecasts


The forecast for each of the three sectors for the forecast period 2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17 are:


       2014-15 2015-16 2016-17  


Residential Building (commencements)  2,214  1,992  1,981  


Residential Building (% change)   0  -10  -1  


Non-Residential Building ($m work done)  $736  $603  $607  


Non-Residential Building (% change)   -24%  -18%  1%  


Engineering Construction ($m work done)  $3,889  $2,517  $2,219  


Engineering Construction (% change)  -24%  -35%  -12%  


Residential building starts increased by two thirds over the past four years and growth is expected 
to now pause, if not enter a cyclical downturn. Population growth from the infl ux of workers attracted by 
activity associated with the major gas project is expected to reverse, affecting the demand for housing.


The total value of non-residential building activity is forecast to decline, but remain at a reason-
ably high level. The total value of engineering construction activity is set to decline by 70 per cent over 
the forecast period, driven by the washout of the Inpex project and associated infrastructure works.


DWELLING COMMENCEMENTS, NORTHERN TERRITORY


     Jun-10   Jun-11   Jun-12    Jun-13   Jun-14   Jun-15  Jun-16    Jun-17  


NT Houses (no.)  830   798        840        818         736        802   891      935  


NT Houses (A%ch)  22.4   -3.9     5.3       -2.6        -10   9   11      5  


NT Other Residential (no.) 528    865     779       1376       1,486   1,412    1,101      1,046  


NT Other Res (A%ch)            15.8    63.8     -9.9        76.6        8            -5   - 22      -5  


NT Total Residential (no.)      1,358     1,663    1,619      2,194      2,222   2,214    1,992     1,981  


NT Total (A%ch)  9.2     22.5      -2.6        35.5        1  0 -10            -1   


                                                                                                                                                                                        
Source: Master Builders Australia, Independent Economics, ABS data.
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Certifi cate IV Building 
and Construction  


Katherine Morris - Administration Co-ordinator / 


Certifi cate IV Manager


  







Cert i f icate IV in Bui lding and  
Construction (Building) 2013/2014


Master Builders NT completed its eighth (NT8) and 
ninth (NT9) Certif cate IV in Building and Construc-
tion (Building) courses in 2013/2014.  These 
courses allowed 49 participants to complete their 
training and get a step closer to obtaining their building 
licence.   Training forty-nine participants is an excel-
lent result, and one we wish to continue into the future.


The importance of our course can not be forgotten. 
This qualifi cation is a requirement of Building Prac-
titioners Board for anyone wishing to obtain their 
Building Licence in the NT.   As the generational 
change takes place with Builders in the industry it is 
important more people have the knowledge and skills 
to fi ll the places of those that retire. At Master Builders 
NT, we wish to continue to foster the up-skilling 
and reskilling of young and experienced trades-
people in their move to become Licenced Builders.


We have had an overwhelming response from  
people wishing to undertake our training in  
2013/2014 and this can be attributed to the quality 
of our training, our delivery and our profession-
alism.  We have excellent Trainers in Chief Assessor, 
Michael O’Donnell, and Lecturers Brett Williams, 
Clive Scobie and Michael Hatton.  Together, these 
facilitators have a vast wealth of knowledge and 
experience they are happy to pass onto eager young 
builders. We are lucky to have them as a part of our 
course. Our course delivery is unique in how it caters 
for people in full time work.  Held over 3 to 4 months, 
students complete 100 contact hours over, 17 days 
with classes held every second weekend.  We strive 
to excel with our quality of work and attentiveness to 
the needs of our participants and ensure we conduct 
our work with a high standard of professionalism and 
integrity.  We know we must be doing something right 
as most of the expressions of interest we receive are 
from people who know someone who has completed 
one of our Cert IV courses, and highly recommends it. 


Funding from the T erritory Government is  
vital to the continuation of our Cert IV course. 
Without this funding, MBANT would not be able 
to run its courses.  This year we received funding 
from the NT Government’s Department of Business 


under the Labour Market Training Program for 
NT8 and the BuildSkills Program for NT9. Funding 
subsidises the course fees by 60%, making the 
course affordable for our students. We are very 
grateful for the support of the NT Government.


As mentioned, it is important that we continue to 
provide this vital training to the industry as it provides 
a pathway for generational change as many licenced 
builders who have worked in the Territory for decades 
move into retirement.  To help the industry avoid a 
shortage of qualifi ed and licenced builders in the NT, 
we must continue to produce competent graduates 
with a focus on quality who support the Territory. 


Charles Darwin University supported our courses 
as our Registered Training Organisation for the 
year of 2013/2014.  We are very fortunate to have 
a great working relationship with the NT’s leading 
education provider, Charles Darwin University and 
it is an arrangement we continue into 2014/2015.


We held a graduation ceremony on 19th December 
2013 for our NT8 Students with Minister for Depart-
ment of Business, David Tollner, and Head of Trade 
School, Justin Busse, as guest speakers. It was a 
great opportunity for potential participants to see 
the results of completing our course, and for our 
graduating students to obtain their coveted certifi -
cates. We would like to thank Minister Tollner and 
Mr. Busse once again for attending our event and 
showing suppose for our training and the industry.  


It has been a pleasure working as Certifi-
cate IV Manager for Master Builders NT for  
2013/2014.  Looking forward, we have big plans 
for 2015, and are already well underway in our 
fi rst course for 2014/2015, NT10 with 28 partic-
ipants.  In refl ection of 2013/2014, it has been a 
great year for training, and our courses, and we have 
continued to demonstrate the quality of our training.


Kind regards,


Katherine Morris, Certifi cate IV Manager
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Workplace 
Health & Safety


Brett Williams - Safety Supervisor 







During 2013/14, Master Builders Northern Territory 
continued to provide high quality occupational  
health and safety (OHS) services to members . 


OHS PERSONNEL


The OHS department is now run by the Safety Super-
visor, Brett Williams. Brett is a qualifi ed tradesman 
who began his carpentry apprenticeship in 1985 
and holds various relevant qualifi cations including: 
Advanced Trade Certificate Carpentry, Certifi-
cate IV Building and Construction, an Advanced 
Diploma of OHS, a Diploma of Quality Auditing 
and Certificate IV in Training and Assessment.


OHS TRAINING 


OHS training courses provided by MBANT were: 


• General Construction Induction Training (White 
Card) 


• Testing and Tagging of Portable Electrical Equip-
ment, (fortnightly), and 


• Certifi cate IV in Building and Construction 
(Building); CPCCBC4002A Manage occupational 
health and safety in the building and construction 
workplace. (2 courses per annum) 


All are Vocational Education Training (VET) nation-
ally accredited programs, delivered by trainers qual-
ified in Certificate IV Training and Assessment. 


CHARLES DARWIN UNIVERSITY


Master Builders NT OHS training is supported by 
Charles Darwin University under auspice arrange-
ments to deliver Test and Tag, White Card and 
Cert IV Building and Construction (Building).


Charles Darwin University is a fantastic local resource 
and source of information and support for the staff and 
students at MBANT and are invaluable in assisting 
with the provision of robust and quality training. 


DARWIN CORRECTIONS CENTRE:


With an emphasis on more inmates training and 
reintegrating into society by working in the commu-
nity, training has been delivered to multiple groups 
of inmates and staff at the now closed Living Skills 
Unit (LSU). This training has included test and tag 
and white card training. Additionally, white card 
training was delivered to a group in the female wing 
of the facility. Although these can be seen to be 
short courses, from the point of view of the trainers 
the training was delivered in a relaxed environment 
and most participants were enthusiastic students.


It is apparent to the trainers that many of the students at 
the centre have not been in a classroom environment for 
some time. Some of the students were viewed to have 
low levels of confi dence, possibly due to low literacy 
and numeracy skills and several may have English as a 
second or even third language. Where required, follow 
up remedial training was provided as part of the service 
to ensure successful outcomes for all parties involved. 


Even though the LSU was the low security wing, 
several security precautions had to be taken. Apart 
from prohibited items such as weapons and other 
obvious items such as cellular phones, computers 
and memory sticks, many of the training items could 
also be seen to be “attractive”.  Objects which may 
seem every day and mundane can in the wrong 
hands be put to all sorts of uses that most people 
would never have thought of. Therefore, it is imper-
ative that training staff working at Corrections are 
mindful of security and safety issues at all times.


It is rewarding to think that by delivering training 
to the inmates at Darwin Corrections Centre that 
MBANT is contributing to the rehabilitation of inmates 
and providing them with some useable skills and 
qualifi cations to help them gain employment in the 
commercial work environment. Any program which 
successfully reduces recidivism and therefore 
costs to the taxpayer must be seen to be desirable. 


The new Darwin Correctional Precinct offi cially opened 
on the 8th of September 2014 at Howard Springs. 
MBANT looks forward to working in partnership with the 
Department of Correctional Services once all inmates 
have been transferred across to the new facility.
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SAFETY WORK ON DEMAND AND SAFETY 
SYSTEMS


MBANT continue to provide safety work as required 
to its members.


These services include site safety walks and inspec-
tions, spot audits and audits. In addition MBANT can 
provide custom:


• Manuals


• Safe Work Method Statements,


• Procedures, 


• Forms and Templates, 


• Checklists,


• Registers,


• Permits, and,


• Work Instructions


Safety management systems set out an organisation’s 
systematic approach to managing safety, including 
organisational structures, accountabilities, policies 
and procedures. Key elements such as management 
commitment to safety, appointed safety personnel, 
hazard identifi cation, risk mitigation, investigations 
and audits, and monitoring & measuring are iden-
tified and defined. The many benefits of a safety 
management system, aside from helping to ensure 
the welfare and safety of workers, can include reducing 
rates of property and material damage, lower rates 
of absenteeism, higher effi ciency and productivity 
and most importantly, signifi cantly reducing accident 
rates lowering the substantial costs of injuries 
due to lost productivity and insurance premiums. 


It can be slightly more expensive initially to develop 
a custom-made safety system, as opposed to buying 
“off the shelf” products from the internet. These 
internet items may seem attractive in terms of price 
and availability; however for example, a generic safe 
work method statement may not necessarily ensure 
that a person conducting a business or undertaking 
(PCBU) is meeting their legal obligations. A generic 


safe work method statement may also lead to further 
complications and legal issues should an incident or 
accident occur. It is now common for companies to 
need to provide evidence of a working safety system 
when submitting tender documents, and it is clear to 
anyone who knows what they are looking at when a 
non-working off the shelf set of documents is provided. 
As is so often the case, the initial “cheap” option may 
not end up being the most economical option at all. 


MBANT is also happy to provide training to 
develop and implement safety documents and 
systems to enable companies and their desig-
nated personnel to become self-sufficient in this 
area, thereby decreasing reliance on consultants, 
further saving money over the longer term as well 
as ensuring that compliance requirements are met.  


MALAK RE-ENGAGEMENT CENTRE


Two General Construction Induction courses have 
been held at the Malak Re-engagement Centre (MRC) 
over the past year.  The centre caters for complex 
needs students who may have had diffi culty inte-
grating into the mainstream school environment.  
MBANT is pleased to be able to assist MRC staff 
by providing training, sharing in positive outcomes 
and potentially increasing the students’ employ-
ment prospects within the construction industry.


GENERAL SERVICE


Master Builders NT are proud to provide high 
quality cost effective service with the assurance 
of dealing with long term local professionals who 
stand by their services and are readily available 
for support. Being part of a National Federation, 
Master Builders NT have the signifi cant advantage 
of being able to call on other subject matter experts 
within the wider organisation should this be required. 


For advice and assistance with all OHS matters, 
call Brett Williams (Safety Supervisor) on 0417 111 
553 or call the General Manager Operations, Jeff 
Colver on 0427 096 879 to arrange an appointment.
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Industrial 
Relations


Jeff Colver - General Manager Operations 







THE PERENNIAL BATTLE-LABOUR COSTS AND PRODUCTIVITY


Your member organisation continues to strive towards excellence and practicality in service provi-
sion in the Workplace Relations fi eld against a dynamic background of heavy-handed union interven-
tion,  secondary boycotts and black bans as well as other alleged unlawful practices and a fresh Royal 
Commission into Trade Union Governance and Corruption.


In a Country which already has a bias towards workers over owners, MBANT is conscious of the need 
to re-establish a fair balance of labour versus capital. Productivity and competitiveness are diffi cult 
to achieve if you are purchasing your labour too expensively.  Australians enjoy the lowest number of 
hours worked per week and the greatest number of days taken off per year compared to similar coun-
tries such as New Zealand, United Kingdom, United States, Singapore, United Arab Emirates and South 
Africa. Australia has the only annual leave loading program in the world.


Every week our Members requests Master Builders assistance with advice on unfair dismissal, work-
place bullying, enquiries regarding award rates and allowances, workplace agreements and individual 
common-law workplace employment contracts. Nothing is overly diffi cult for our staff and our rates are 
very affordable against the costs being charged by our competitors. Need advice…give our capable 
staff a call on 8922 9666.


DON’T THROW YOUR CASH FLOW AWAY-ADJUDICATORS ARE AVAILABLE


Another fast-growing area of our work is in the appointment of mediators to settle minor payment 
and workmanship disputes. Over and above these issues we are classed as an Appointer under the 
Construction Contracts (Security of Payments) Act and have this year alone appointed Adjudicators to 
some very large cases of over $20 million.


There is simply no need for any Contractor to have to wait any longer for payment than the terms of 
trade laid out in the Contract. If you are having diffi culties with cash fl ow with large existing overdue 
debts call Jeff Colver; our General Manager Operations. A quick 15 minute interview will see you 
hooked up with an appropriate Lawyer and Adjudicator with your case being determined often within a 
working month. More importantly we can advise you how to avoid these issues from happening again 
through a process of better contract making and closer management.


ENGAGING AN APPRENTICE-THERE ARE PAYROLL PITFALLS WHICH CAN BE AVOIDED


Any employer who has engaged an apprentice in the past two years would be totally in the dark in 
relation to pay, working conditions, training costs and who pays, allowances and matters relating to 
various forms of leave.


Changes to Apprentice Wages and Conditions have undergone their biggest series of systemic changes 
for many years…in particular in the area of Adult Apprenticeships. MBANT has for many years provided 
an Industrial Relations-based advisory service to Apprenticeships Australia NT and literally thousands of 
apprentices via an IR hot line on 1300 302 675 . If Employers, Apprentices or Parents/Guardians are in 
any doubt as to the value of the pay and conditions for this sector the help is only a phone call away.
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2013/14 Calendar of Events 


September 2013  Corporate Golf Day 


December 2013  NT8 Certif cate IV Building & Construction graduation 


January 2014  Carers NT Fundraiser BBQ


February 2014  Master Builders NT Industry Breakfast with Guest Speaker   
   - Director of Fair Work Building & Construction, Nigel Hadgkiss 


March 2014  Trade Evening -  USG BORAL Partiwall


April 2014   Trade Evening - Solar Energy Info Night presented by Power & 


                              Water 


April 2014   Members Luncheon - A discussion with the Chief Minister   
   regarding his North Australia Agenda 


May 2014    Master Builders NT 2014/2015 Budget Brief ng Breakfast


May 2014   Australia’s Biggest Morning Tea 


June 2014    Right of Entry Information Session with Fair Work Building &   
                              Construction 


July 2014    Construction Contracts – Security of Payments Seminar    
   presented  by Cridland MB Lawyers 


 August 2014  Master Builders NT Excellence in Building & Construction Awards                                                                                                                                          
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CAMS
Tony Schumacher - Apprenticeship Engagement 


Manager NT







C.A.M.S is a Commonwealth Government funded project which supports the 
Building and Construction industry to take on trade Apprentices or trainees. 


The scheme has been successfully rolled out through all MBAs in Australia, to local school 
leavers, current apprentices in the industry, potential new apprentices and mature aged 
workers that are looking at entering a trade fi eld of their choice or making a career change. 
 
The scheme has two parts. The Advisory Scheme and the Mentoring Scheme. The 
Apprenticeship Engagement Manager NT (AEO) is the main contact point and has 
supplied mentors to monitor and liaise with the apprentices / trainees across the Territory. 


Master Builders has achieved tremendous results with a total of 130 appren-
tices and 30 Mentors recruited to the scheme. CAMS continues in 2015


C.A.M.S Offers


• advice on work place confl icts 
• assistance in resolving any issues in the apprenticeship
• advice on employment terms and conditions.
• mentors who can assist in the development of the apprentice
• an online advisory information service.


Master Builders acknowledges the Australian Apprenticeship Centre (ACC) / Charles 
Darwin University (CDU) / Advance Training International (ATI) / Group Training NT 
(GTNT) / Department of Education / YouthWorx - Careers Expo who have all been valuable 
in their involvement and contribution to the success of CAMS in the Northern Territory. 
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Fidelity Fund
Cecile Hanak - Fidelity Fund Administrator







TO FIND OUT WHAT THE FIDELITY FUND COVERS, GO TO  fidelityfundnt.com.au


B U I L D I N G  A  N E W  H O M E 
O R  E X T E N D I N G ?


I sit on the Building Advisory Committee 
and Building Practitioners’ Board and I’m 
passionate about supporting our industry 
and making life as easy as possible for hard-
working builders. 


Over the years many builders have been 
concerned that there isn’t any way to deal  
with the high risk builders who give the 
industry a bad name.  


Well, now there is.  


I was recently appointed the compliance 
auditor for the new Master Builders Fidelity 
Fund. The aim of the Fund is to protect 
consumers at a time when many are at their 
most vulnerable: building a new home or 
doing major extensions.


I have the proactive role of identifying issues 
before they get past the point of no return. 
This means driving around and monitoring 


the progress of the projects, ensuring the 
conditions of Fidelity Fund Certificates are 
met and trying to pick up early warning signs 
of building failures. 


An ounce of prevention is worth a pound of 
cure, the saying goes.  


While the Fidelity Fund can’t cover 
everything, it strives to prevent many of the 
horror stories we have seen over the years of 
families left stranded with unfinished homes.


There are many good builders in the  
Territory and we’re about building trust  
and peace of mind for consumers and 
confidence in our industry.


Paul Nowland 
Compliance Auditor 
Master Builders Fidelity Fund


B U I L D I N G  A  N E W  H O M E 
O R  E X T E N D I N G ?


Hi
B U I L D I N G 
T R U S T


My name is Paul Nowland. I’ve lived in 
the Territory since 1964 and I’ve been 
building here for more than 30 years...
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Executive Members L-R


John Brears - Mirage Developments 


Paul Nowland - Nowland Builders 


Russell Lutzke - All Round Supplies 


Mike Hatton - Asset Services 


Greg McLaughlin - Mobile Electrics (NT) Pty Ltd (Past 


President)


Charles Wright - QS Services 


Dick Guit - Sitzler Pty Ltd (President)







Master Builders NT Staff                                                                        
David Malone


Executive Director


--


Jeff Colver


General Manager Operations 


--


Katherine Morris


Administration Coordinator/ Certifi cate IV Manager 


--


Lisa Tripp Pickering


Marketing & Events Coordinator 


--


Yenni Handayani


Financial Controller 


--


Cecile Hanak


Fund Administrator 


--


Brett Williams


Safety Supervisor 


--


Paula McCullough 


Offi ce Administrator 
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The number of entries this year increased on previous years, particularly in Homes between $350,000 and 
$500,000, bath rooms and kitchens.  Some Builders had multiple entries in one category.


The standard of all entries were good, with a few Builders reaching very good and exceptional standards.


The Judges have offered, to assist young Builders, a “free of charge” mentoring and advisor service, where 
during onsite inspections of completed houses, suggestions will be given, as to how further improvements in 
fi nish and service can be achieved.


From this year winners will be able to purchase a plaque for each winning entry that can be mounted on the 
property in perpetuity.


The award night continued to be one of the highlights of the MBA year, thanks to the time given by the 
Judges and the exceptional effort of the MBA staff.


Alterations, Additions & Renovations $250,000 
- $350,000 - Vantage Homes Pty Ltd  - The David 
Residence 


Alterations, Additions & Renovations Over 
$500,000 - PTM Group Pty Ltd - DHA 11 House 
Updrage Larrakeyah 


Australian School Based Apprentice of the Year 
Liam May - Electric NT Pty Ltd


CAMS Apprentice of the Year                                        
Tom Clarke - Scope Building NT


Carpentry Apprentice of the Year              
Jesse Whittard - Scott Hammet Building & Carpentry 


Civil Construction Over $25 Million                  
John Holland Territoria Civil Pty Ltd - Site Develop-
ment Civil Works (CVL2) Ichthys Project 


Civil Construction Under $25 Million    
Advance Civil Engineering - Cullen Bay Pontoon & 
Gangway 


Commercial & Retail Fit Out or Alteration Over 
$300,000  - ISIS Group Australia Pty Ltd - Energy 
Resources of Australia


Commercial & Retail Fit Out or Alteration Under 
$300,000  - ISIS Group Australia Pty Ltd  - NT 
Registry Offi ce 


Commercial Industrial Construction $20 Million 
- $50 Million  - John Holland  - Robertson Barracks 
Electrical Reticulation System Upgrade 


Commercial Industrial Construction $5 Million - 
$10 Million  - Sitzler Pty Ltd  - Buslink VIVO Depot 
Howard Springs 


Commercial Industrial Construction Over $100 
Million  - Sitzler Pty Ltd  - Single Leap 2 - Robertson 
Barracks 


Commercial Metal Roofi ng & Walling Contractor 
of the Year  - Halikos Roofi ng - Single Leap stage 1 
and 2 - Robertson Barracks 


Display Home $250,000 - $350,000  
Vanguard Homes - Bickerton Design


Display Home $350,000 - $500,000  
Northern Star Homes  Acacia 


Display Home Over $500,000                        
Northern Star Homes  Summer Breeze MK1


Display Home Under $250k                                          
Killarney Homes - Bellamack Display


Excellence in Bathroom Design Over $20,000  
Clarke Constructions (NT) Pty Ltd  - 32 George 
Crescent (4 Townhouses)
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Excellence in Bathroom Design Under $20,000  
Saroukos Homes - The Lotus (ensuite)


Excellence in Building for the NT Climate 
Hotondo Homes Darwin - Trippe Road Home 


Excellence in Kitchen Design Over $20,000  
Kitchen Concepts - Seale Street Fannie Bay 


Excellence in Kitchen Design Under $20,000  
Northern Star Homes  - Acacia 


Excellence in Student Building Design & Drafting 
- Amanda Sunners


General Building & Construction Apprentice of 
the Year - Corey Bell - Alice Kitchens & Cabinets 


High Rise Apartment Building (above 3 storeys)  
Halikos Developments - H2O Apartments 


Judges Award                                                                   
Clarke    Constructions (NT) Pty Ltd  32 George 
Crescent (4 Townhouses)


Medium Density 2-5 Dwellings                                            
Killarney Homes  - Hobart Crescent Development 


Medium Density Over 5 Dwellings                                          
PTM Group Pty Ltd - DHA 20 Houses Muirhead 


NECA/NHP Electrical Apprentice of the Year  
Mitchell Hore - Electric NT Pty Ltd


OH&S Commercial/ Civil                                                           
Ahrens Group Toll Inpex - Offshore Supply Base 


Overall Apprentice of the Year                                         
Mitchell Hore - Electric NT Pty Ltd


Overall Home of the Year Award                                
Overlander Homes - The Visionary


Plumbing Apprentice of the Year Award                                 
Michael Hodgetts  - GJ WIGG Plumbing Specialists


President’s Award                                                            
Sitzler Pty Ltd Single Leap 2 - Robertson Barracks 


Project Contract Home $350,000 -$500,000   


Bendella Group Pty Ltd - Drysdale Residence 


Project Contract Home $500,000 -$650,000   
Hotondo Homes Darwin Trippe Road Home 


Project Contract Home $650,000 -$800,000   
Hotondo Homes Darwin - Neptuna Crescent Home


Project Contract Home over $2M                                        
Overlander Homes  The Visionary


Project Contract Home Under $350,000   
Bendella Group Pty Ltd - Parkinson Residence


Public Building over $10M                                                                 
Lahey Constructions  Alice Springs Hospital -                
Emergency Dept & Medical Imaging Wing 


Remote Construction                                                                
Scott Hammet Building & Carpentry  Gunbalanya 
Trade Training Centre 


Residential Metal Roofi ng & 
Walling Contractor of the Year                                                                            
Prodigy Construction & Roofi ng  Michael Kitsos 
Residence 


Specialist Contractor of the Year Award                          
Jordan Hydraulic Services 


Specialist Project - Electrical Commercial                                                                      
Nilsen NT Pty Ltd                                                                       
Northern Territory Secure Facility 


Specialist Project - Electrical Voice Data                                                                       
Nilsen NT Pty Ltd                                                                  
Northern Territory Secure Facility 


Supplier of the Year Award                                       
Nortruss 


Women in Construction Award                                                                                  
Jody Jarrett                                                                               
ISIS Group Australia Pty Ltd 


Young Builder of the Year Award                                                                            
Shaun Wilton                                                                          
Hotondo Homes Darwin
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 The 2013-14 year for Master Builders Australia was full of challenge and opportunity.


For most of 2013 the politics at the federal level was extremely challenging. A dysfunctional 
minority government with a clearly anti-business agenda was enacting laws that weakened the 
environment for business and boosted the power of the building unions.  


The result was resurgence in brazen industrial thuggery by building unions which shut building 
sites, sabotaged productivity and cost jobs in our industry and worse still, severely dented investor 
confi dence in our industry. 


Confronting this situation, an energised Master Builders National Board responded with the 
Strong Building, Strong Economy campaign which successfully promoted the vital contribution 
the industry makes to the economy and the community and put the industry’s policy priorities for 
the next Federal Government front and centre to political parties, the media and the public during 
the Federal Election Campaign in September 2013. The campaign was successful with many of 
Master Builders’ policies being adopted and considered by the Abbott Government.


This policy alignment has allowed Master Builders to work closely with the Government to ensure 
it remains aware of the industry’s concerns. 


Master Builders made more than 140 submissions to the Government on public policy issues that 
have a major impact on the business environment Master Builders members operate in, including: 


� Repairing the Government’s structural debt and defi cit


� The restoration of the ABCC powers


� The 457 visa system


� Housing affordability


� Cost of infrastructure construction


� VET reform 


� Improving Safe Work Australia’s model WHS laws


Sadly among the achievements which have marked 2013-14, we also experienced great sadness. 
With the passing of Graham Kemp Master Builders lost a leader whose contributions in the NT 
and the national level were widely admired and recognised. 
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MASTER BUILDERS NT 
 


2014 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
26 September, 2014 


 


MINUTES 
 
IN ATTENDANCE 
 
Dick Guit Michael Hatton 
Clive Clements Adam Twomey 
John Brears Russell Lutzke 
Kevin Peters David Lester 
Charles Wright Richard Riedel 
Danielle Laffy Andrea Gardner 
John Clacy 
 
MBANT STAFF 
 
Dave Malone Jeff Colver 
 
APOLOGIES 
 
Greg McLaughlin Paul Nowland 
Phil Storey Roger Pearson 
Tom Richmond Clete Ryan 
 
1. WELCOME 


The President welcomed all members to the Annual General Meeting that commenced 
at 8:00 a.m. 


 
2. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 


Mr. Guit spoke to his report contained in the meeting papers.  He focused on the 
challenges confronted by the industry in the past year, the work of the Association and 
his expectations for the coming year.  He also made mention of the loss of Graham 
Kemp and he thanked the staff of the Association for their commitment through those 
difficult times. 



http://www.mbant.com.au/
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Master Builders NT is proudly affiliated with Master Builders Association Insurance Services, Master Plumbers Association, National Electrical and Communications 
Association and Australian Glass and Glazing Association. Serving the building and construction industry throughout the Northern Territory. 


Mr. Malone reiterated Mr. Guit’s comments about the staff.  He also thanked the 
membership for their continued support of the Association and its structures and 
activities.  He also took the opportunity to mention a number of additional matters, 
such as: 
 


 The investigations by the Royal Commission into Union Activities; 


 The upgrade of business systems within Master Builders; 


 The strategy work of Master Builders nationally; 


 His thanks for the support of sister organisations – QMBA and MBA ACT – 


who have allowed MBANT to leverage new IT systems and the Fidelity Fund 


model; and, 


 The need for the Master Builders movement to leverage the genuine 


strength of its 30,000 members in the delivery of services and its lobbying 


activities. 


3. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The Treasurer, Russell Lutzke, presented the audited accounts for the 2013/14 Financial 
Year, as prepared by the Associations auditors, BDO (NT) P/L. 
The meetings adopted those accounts. 
 
4. CONFIRMATION OF 2014/15 COUNCIL ELECTION 
 
Mr. Malone advised the meeting that Master Builders had received the same number of 
nominations as vacancies on Council, and as such, there would not need to be an 
election conducted. 
 
Accordingly, the following people are on Council for 2014/15: 
 


First Name Last Name Position Business 


Adam Twomey Director Adamant Property Services Pty Ltd 


Andrea Gardiner Housing Consultant Killarney Homes Pty Ltd 


Charles Wright Principal QS Services 


Clete Ryan  Sitzler Pty Ltd 


Danielle  Laffy Project & Office Manager Bendella Group 


David  Lester Positional Manager Ahrens Group Pty Ltd 


Dick  Guit General Manager Sitzler Pty Ltd 


Greg  McLaughlin Managing Director Mobile Electrics (NT) Pty Ltd 


John  Brears Owner & Consulting Engineer Mirage Developments Pty Ltd 


John Clacy Director Remote Asset Service Pty Ltd 


Kevin  Peters CEO ICN NT 


Michael  Hatton Structural Engineer/Building Certifier Asset Services 


Paul  Nowland Managing Director Nowland Builders Pty Ltd 


Phil  Storey Business Development Manager SA/NT/Vic. Holcim (Australia) Pty Ltd 


Richard  Riedel Manager ITW Buildex 
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Master Builders NT is proudly affiliated with Master Builders Association Insurance Services, Master Plumbers Association, National Electrical and Communications 
Association and Australian Glass and Glazing Association. Serving the building and construction industry throughout the Northern Territory. 


Roger Pearson  Managing Director/General Manager Arafura Catering Equipment 


Russell  Lutzke  NT Sales Manager All Round Supplies 


Tom Richmond Consultant Hays Specialist Recruitment 


 
Additionally, only one nomination had been received for the position of President and 
therefore Mr. Guit had been elected unopposed. He congratulated Mr. Guit and all 
Councillors.  He also took the opportunity to acknowledge the Councillors stepping 
down this year, noting that any Association was only as strong as those members 
prepared to contribute and drive the organisation. 
 
5. CLOSE 
 
The meeting was declared closed at 9:15 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
Dick Guit 
President 
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Amended Notice ­ Please Find Link to 2013/2014 General Purpose
Financial Statements Below.


View this email in your browser


Amended Notice of 
Annual General Meeting


Friday, 26th September 2014
8:00 am to 9:00 am


11/396 Stuart Hwy, Winnellie NT 0820
 


AGENDA


1.Welcome & Apologies
2.President’s Report/Annual Report
3.Consideration & Adoption of 2013/2014 General Purpose Financial Statements
4.Confirmation of 2014/2015 MBANT Council
5.Close
 
See this link for a copy of Master Builders NT's 2013/2014 General Purpose Financial
Statements.


Please RSVP Paula via phone, 08 8922 9666, or email, info@mbant.com.au.


Subscribe Share Past Issues Translate
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MBANT Weekly eBulletin 4th September 2014
View this email in your browser


Master Builders NT
Weekly eBulletin


Facebook Twitter Website


Events & Services


Weekly Executive Directors Update
Great Awards Night


Thanks to everyone for attending the Excellence in Building and Construction Awards last Friday night. It


was great to see such a cross section of the Master Builders membership on the lawns of Skycity Casino. The


event definitely remains one of the biggest industry events across the NT.......


Fidelity Certificates


The Trustees of the Fidelity Fund have released their August stats for certificates issued last month. The great


thing about these is that they tell a story about what happened in August, just a few days after the month


finishes, and not delayed as we see with the official statistics......


Master Builders AGM


The 13/14 Annual General Meeting for the Association will be held in our offices on Winnellie Road from 8 –


9.30am on Friday, 26 September, 2014.........


Political Changes


Congratulations to Minister Peter Chandler for his elevation to the post of Deputy Chief Minister. We are sure


he will do a great job and bring his own ‘style’ to the role.


Read more....


Subscribe Share Past Issues Translate
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EXCELLENCE IN BUILDING &
CONSTRUCTION 


AWARDS


 


This year to assist the Territories’ young builders
improve  their houses, the MBA judges have
offered to provide “free of charge” mentoring and
advisory service to all young builders who would
like suggestions from the Judges as to how they
can improve the houses they build and also the
standard of service to their customers.
 
So to all young builders, if you wish to take
advantage of this offer, call Lisa and make an
appointment for one of the Judges to visit your
houses and give you free advice and
suggestions as to how you can improve your
end product and your service to customers.
 
Finally this year for the first time the MBA will be
offering all winners the opportunity to purchase
and install a specially designed plaque,
recognising their award on the building they
have constructed.  This will apply to all buildings
contact Lisa for more information 89229666 or
email lisa.tripp@mbant.com.au 
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The NT Training Awards are the Department of Business annual premier event
recognising training excellence and achievements by Territory businesses, training
organisations, apprentices, trainees, trainers and students. The awards are an
official recognition of excellence and achievements in gaining the highest standards
of knowledge and skills, in contributing to high standards of training, and for
personal achievement in the vocational education and training (VET) sector.
 
Katherine Morris and Jeff Colver will proudly be representing the Master Builders
Association NT at the 59th annual NT Training Awards Gala Dinner as the
Vocational Student of the Year category sponsor on Saturday 13 September 2014. 
Master Builders NT sponsorship of the awards is an exceptional opportunity for the
association to be part of the Territory priority of skilling people of all ages, and are
being recognised as leading contributors to the development and recognition of
skills in the Northern Territory.
 
Save the date and be part of history – join in the NT Training Awards 60th
anniversary celebrations of excellence in vocation education and training next year
by nominating your final year apprentices or trainees, or your business in one of
the employer categories.  Nominations for the 2015 NT Training Awards will open
in March next year.
 
Further information can be found at www.trainingawards.nt.gov.au


Media Releases 


Industry Upbeat on
Forecast Outlook
Written by: Peter Jones, Chief Economist, 28 Aug 2014


“Master Builders remains confident that prospects for the building industry will remain positive despite the slight 1.2
per cent seasonally adjusted fall in the ABS construction work done data for the June quarter,” Peter Jones Chief
Economist of Master Builders Australia said.


 “The easing in engineering construction forecast by Master Builders Building and Construction Industry
Forecast was confirmed by the 3.1 per cent seasonally adjusted fall in June. However, this was largely offset by
building work done in residential building and commercial construction which rose 1.5 per cent seasonally adjusted in
the same period,” he said.



http://www.trainingawards.nt.gov.au/
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Read More


Senate Must Seize Chance
To Back Sensible IR
Reform
Written by: Wilhelm Harnisch, Chief Executive Officer, 28 Aug 2014


The passing of the Government’s Fair Work
Amendment Bill through the House of
Representatives gives the Senate the
opportunity to demonstrate that it is in support
of sensible and balanced industrial relations
reforms that will help boost economic and
jobs growth.


“Master Builders urges the cross bench
Senators to seize this chance to back the
Bill’s balanced productivity reforms which for
the building and construction industry means
it can increase its productivity and create
jobs,” Wilhelm Harnisch, CEO of Master
Builders Australia said.


“The Bill is a positive step in returning the
industrial relations system to the sensible
centre and includes reforms recommended
by the previous Labor Government’s Fair
Work Review Panel,” he said.


Read More


Lift In Approvals Boosts
Confidence As House
Building Gains Strength



http://www.masterbuilders.com.au/newsarticles/senate-must-seize-chance-to-back-sensible-ir-reform

http://www.masterbuilders.com.au/newsarticles/industry-upbeat-on-forecast-outlook
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Written by: Peter Jones, Chief Economist, 02 Sep 2014


 


“Master Builders is confident of continued
strength in residential building despite the
slight easing in the previously ‘red hot’
upswing in approvals for apartments,” Peter
Jones, Chief Economist of Master Builders
Australia said.


“Approvals for July increased by 2.5 per cent
seasonally adjusted on the previous month
bolstered by 9.4 per cent seasonally adjusted
rise in approvals for other dwellings (units and
apartments),” he said.


“Builders will be encouraged that detached
houses are taking over as the key driver of
growth following some moderation in the
recent strong upturn in approvals for units,”
Peter Jones said.


Read More


Launched: A New Guide
For Procurement Of
Compliant Construction
Products
Written by: Wilhelm Harnisch CEO Master Builders Australia, 03 Sep 2014


Master Builders welcomes the launch of
the Procurement of Construction Products, A
Guide to Achieving Compliance.


 “The Guide will make a major contribution to
ensuring that construction work is done with
products compliant with the National
Construction Code and relevant national and
international standards,” Wilhelm Harnisch
CEO of Master Builders Australia said.


“This is turn will play an important role in
ensuring the construction industry remains a
major engine of economic growth employing
nearly one million Australians and contributing
around $100 billion to the economy,” he said.


Read More


NT Government Tenders Online



http://www.masterbuilders.com.au/newsarticles/lift-in-approvals-boosts-confidence-as-house-building-gains-strength

http://www.masterbuilders.com.au/newsarticles/lift-in-approvals-as-house-building-gains-strength
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https://tendersonline2.nt.gov.au/Tender/ListCurrent


Members Discounts



https://tendersonline2.nt.gov.au/Tender/ListCurrent
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Master Builders has partnered with Medibank to bring you a great deal on health cover for you and your family. Here
are some of the benefits you can look forward to when you join Medibank Corporate health:


An ongoing 8.3% discount – that’s like getting one month of cover free each year*
Tailored packages for every stage of life
No hospital excess for kids on family memberships+
100% back on optical items at optical retailers, up to your annual limits#
Medibank hospital cover includes access to a range of health support services, including a 24/7 health
advice line.
If you have a flybuys account, link your Medibank and flybuys accounts to start earning rewards. See
medibank.com.au/flybuys for details.


For advice and no obligation quote call into Medibank Retail Centre Casuarina
Telephone: (08) 8945 2042 or email your Medibank consultant at Darwin.corporate@medibank.com.au.


Remember to quote you are a member of Master Builders NT


Master Builders member­only deal with Telstra can save you money on a wide range of mobile, landline and internet
products.


Benefits include*:



http://www.telstra.com.au/

https://flybuys.medibank.com.au/

mailto:qldcorporate@medibank.com.au
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Up to 25% off mobile phone plans
Share call and data allowances across your account
Two month ‘port­in’ credit for switching providers
Private Australian­based help desk.


Caltex StarCard is the must­have fuel card that makes managing your business easy.


Master Builders NT exclusive deal with Caltex saves members more than 50% off the monthly fee on StarCard fuel
cards and 3 cents per litre off the pump price for diesel and unleaded fuel.


Copyright © 2014 Master Builders Association NT, All rights reserved.


unsubscribe from this list    update subscription preferences 



http://www.mailchimp.com/monkey-rewards/?utm_source=freemium_newsletter&utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=monkey_rewards&aid=32aa8d31dca17893a6c0ec3f0&afl=1

https://partner.caltex.com.au/starcard-debit/forms/starcard.aspx

http://mbant.us2.list-manage.com/unsubscribe?u=32aa8d31dca17893a6c0ec3f0&id=92b33e1217&e=[UNIQID]&c=773b9c4f60
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MASTER BUILDERS 
NORTHERN TERRITORY 

Designated Officer's Certificate 

ABN:54 527 741 841 
11/396 Stuart Highway 

Winnellie NT 0820 
PO Box 37121 

Winnellie NT 0821 
Telephone: 08 8922 9666 

Facsimile: 08 8922 9600 
Website: www.mbant.com.au 

Email: gmo@mbant.com.au 

Section 268 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 

I, Dick Guit being the President of Master Builders Association of the Northern Territory 

Incorporated trading as Master Builders Northern Territory certify: 

i. That the documents lodged herewith are the General Purpose Financial Statements 

for the Master Builders Association of the Northern Territory Incorporated trading 

as Master Builders Northern Territory for the year ended 30 June 2014, lodged on 

Tuesday 13 January 2015 and are copies of the full General Purpose Financial 

Statements referred to in Section 268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) 

Act 2009; 

ii. That the full General Purpose Financial Statements were provided to the 

Committee of Management of the Master Builders Association of the Northern 

Territory Incorporated trading as Master Builders Northern Territory and endorsed 

at a Meeting held on 6 September 2014; 

iii. That subsequent to the meeting held 6 September 2014, a policy change (allocation 

of available funds to a sinking fund for future office building) caused the General 

Purpose Financial Statements to be re-worked by the Auditor and the second and 

final version of those statements was not made available to the Committee of 

Management until19 September. They were duly signed off and returned to the 

Auditor for final signature on 19 September 2014. 

iv. That Notice of the Annual General Meeting was served on all financial members of 

Master Builders Association of the Northern Territory trading as Master Builders 

Northern Territory on Thursday 4 September 2014 inviting them to meet, discuss 

and vote on the acceptance of the corrected General Purpose Financial Statements 

on Friday 26 September 2014. A reminder was sent on Friday 19 September and 

Pa e 1 

Master Builaers NT is proualy affiliatec1 with M<Jster Builaers Association Insurance Services, Master Plumbers Association, National Electrical ana Communications Association and 
Australian Glass and Glazing Association. Serving the building and construction industry throughout the Northern Territory. 



ABN:54 527 741 841 
11/396 Stuart Highway 

Winnellie NT 0820 
PO Box 37121 

Winnellie NT 0821 
Telephone: 08 8922 9666 

Facsimile: 08 8922 9600 
Website: www.mbant.com.au 

Email: gmo@mbant.com.au 

included the release of the final and fully signed copies of the General Purpose 

Financial Statements. 

v. That the Annual General Meeting held on Friday 26 September 2014 attracted a 

Quorum and resulted in the adoption of the Corrected General Purpose Financial 

Statements. 

vi. A copy of the Minutes of such Annual General Meeting is included in the papers 

supporting this Certification. 

Signt:.e ~bed designated officer 

Name of the prescribed designated officer 

Dick Guit 

Title of the prescribed designated officer 

President-Master Builders Association of the Northern Territory Incorporated trading as 

Master Builders Northern Territory 

Dated: 13 January 2015 
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Master Builders NT is proudly affiliated with Master Builders Association Insurance Services, Master Plumbers Association, National Electrical and Communications Association and 
Australian Glass and Glazing Association. Serving the building and construction industry throughout the Northern Teffifory. 
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MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

30 JUNE 2014 

The Committee of Management of the Master Builders Association Northern Territory Incorporated for 
the purposes of the Fair Work (Registered Organisation) Act 2009, presents its operating report for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2014. 

Committee of Management 
The names of each committee member of the Association during the year from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 
2014, unless otherwise stated, were: 

Dick Guit 

Russel Lutzke 
Paul Nowland 
John Brears 
Michael Hatton 

Charles Wright 

There were no officers or employees who were also directors of the Association or member of the the 
management committee. 

Principal Activities 
The principal activities of the Association during the relevant financial year were: 

To promote the interests of the building and construction industry in the Northern Territory; 

To safeguard the interests of its members against injustice in their regular business and such activities 
as are ancillary to the building and construction industry; 

To protect its members against injustice or oppression in the fair and proper execution of such works as 
they may undertake to carry out from time to time; 

To establish a code of ethics and good business practice amongst members; 

To take an active part in assisting or opposing such public movements as may appear likely to affect its 
members· interests in the carrying on of their business; 

To secure to its members all the advantages of unity of action in any lawful manner whatsoever; and 

To maintain and improve conditions of contracts, forms of agreement, conditions of tendering and the 
like and to enter into agreements with the Royal Australian Institute of Architects or similar bodies, 
public authorities, the Commonwealth and Northern Territory authorities and tending institutions. 



MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

Results of Activities 

OPERATING REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

30 JUNE 2014 

The net surplus of the Association for the financial period was $225,168 ($495, 164 in 2013). 

Significant Changes in Nature of Activities or Financial Affairs 
No significant change in the nature of the activity occurred during the year. 

Membership of the Association 
The number of members of the Association at the end of the financial year was 289 (2013: 263). 

Employees of the Association 
The number of persons employed by the Association during the financial year at one time was 9 (2013: 
10). 

Rights of Members to Resign 
Members retain their right to resign from the Master Builders Association Northern Territory 
Incorporated in accordance with section 10 of the Federal Rules and Section 174 of Chapter 6 of Fair 
Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. In accordance with Section 174 Schedule 1 of the Fair Work 
(Registered Organisations) Act, a member of an organisation may resign from membership by written 
notice addressed and delivered to a person designated for the purpose in the rules of the organisation or 
a branch of the organisation. 

Superannuation Trustees 
No officer or member of the organisation is a trustee of a superannuation entity. 

President 

2 



MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

STATEMENT BY THE COMMITTEE OF MANAGEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

30 JUNE 2014 

~loer 
On the l6i( of -Au.gu.st 2014 the Committee of Management of the Master Builders Association of the 
Northern Territory Incorporated passed the following resolution in relation to the general purpose 
financial statements (GPFS) for the year ended 30 June 2014 as follows: 

In our opinion -

a) the financial statements and notes comply With the Australian Accounting Standards; 

b) the financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidelines of the General Manager of 
the Fair Work Commission; 

c) the financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, financial 
position and cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year to which they relate; 

d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as and 
when they become due and payable; 

e) during the financial year to which the GPFS relates and since the end of that year: 

i) meetings of the Committee of Management of the Association were held in accordance with the 
rules of the Association; 

ii) the financial affairs of the Association have been managed in accordance with the rules of the 
Association; 

iii) The financial records have been kept and maintained In accordance with Part 8 (records and 
Accounts) the Fair Work (Registered Organisation) Act 2009; 

iv) The Association only consists of one reporting unit therefore the Issue of consistency of financial 
reporting does not arise; 

v) No information has been sought by a member of the Association or a General Manager of Fair Work 
Australia under Section 272 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisation) Act 2009; and 

vi) No orders for inspection of financial statements have been made by the Fair Work Australia under 
section 273 of Fair Work (Registered Organisation) Act 2009. 

f) there were no recovery of wages activity during the financial year. 

This declln l=or:ance with a resolution of the Committee of Management. 

President 
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BOO 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Tel: +61 8 8981 7066 
Fax: +61 8 8981 7493 
www.bdo.com.au 

72 Cavenagh St 
DaJWin NT 0800 
GPO Box 4640 DaJWin NT 0801 
AUSTRALIA 

To the members of Master Builders Association Northern Territory Incorporated. 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Master Builders Association Northern 
Territory Incorporated, which comprises the statement of financial posi tion as at 30 June 2014, the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity 
and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant 
accounting policies and the statement of management committee. 

Management Committee's Responsibility for the Financial Report 

The Management Committee are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, Northern Territory 
Associations Act and the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, and for such internal 
control as the Management Committee determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by the Management Committee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 

Independence 

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian 
professional accounting bodies. 
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BDO Audit (NT) ABN 98 944 751 649 is a member of a national association of independent entities which are all members of BDO Australia Ltd ABN 77 050 
110 275, an Australian company limi ted by guarantee. BDO Audit (NT) and BDO Australia Ltd are members of BDO Internat ional Ltd, a UK company limited 
by guarantee, and form part of the international BDO network of independent member firms. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional 
Standards Legislation (other than for the acts or omissions of ftnancial serYites licensees) in each State or Territory other than Tasmania. 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 

Master Builders Association Northern Territory Incorporated as at 30 June 2014, and its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards, Northern Territory Associations Act and the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 
2009. 

Other Matters 

In our opinion, we conclude that the management's use of going concern basis of accounting in 
preparation of the Association's financial statements is appropriate as current assets exceeds 
current liabilities by $749,674 and year-end cash balance of $975,109 is more than enough to cover 
its total liabilities of $752,677. 

BOO Audit (NT) 

C J Sciacca 
Chartered Accountant 
Audit Partner 

Darwin: 16 September 2014 
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MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

Revenues 

Share of profits of associate accounted for using the equity method 

Other income 

Expenses 

Affiliation fees to Master Builders Australia Inc. 
Accounting and audit fees 

Administration costs 

Decrease in value of investment property 

Depreciation 
Finance costs 
Financial services 

Marketing, functions and events costs 

Office supplies, postage and other administration costs 

Product and services 

Property costs 

Sundry expenses 

Training and projects costs 

Travel and accommodation 

Employee expenses - Committee of Management 

Employee expenses - Management 

Employee expenses - Other staff 

Total Expenses 

Surplus For The Year 

Other comprehensive income 

Total Comprehensive Income 

Note 

2(a) 
2(b) 

2(c) 

3(a) 

3e, 15(b) 

8 
7 

12 

3(b) 

3(c) 

3(d) 

2014 

$ 

2,317,785 

75,179 
101,822 

2,494,786 

91 ,580 

8,000 

401,924 

69,003 

11,084 
20,902 

34,066 

219,431 

95,870 
31,125 

117,003 

73,497 

146,031 

25,194 

369,913 

554,995 
2,269,618 

225,168 

225,168 

2013 

s 

2,224,001 

72 ,987 
78,447 

2,375,435 

84,526 
9,849 

110,911 

22 ,962 
11,197 

17,482 

211,561 

170,187 

53 ,336 

115,444 

35,310 

81 ,581 

51,971 

363,315 

540,639 
1,880,271 

495,164 

495,164 

The Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

ASSETS 

Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2014 

Note 

4 

2014 

s 

975,109 
Trade and other receivables 5 116,632 
Inventory 

Prepayments 

Total Current Assets 

Non-Current Assets 

Property and equipment 

Investments 

Other noncurrent asset 
Total Non-Current Assets 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities 

Trade and other payables 

Grant liabilities 

Borrowings 

Provisions 

Total Current Liabilities 

Non-Current Liability 

Borrowings 

Total Non-Current Liability 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 

EQUITY 

Retained surplus 
Total Equity 

6 5,879 
58,299 

1,155,919 

7 28,697 

8 878,166 

1(g) 12,026 
918,889 

2,074,808 

9 228,609 
10 132,001 
12 5,130 

11 40,505 
406,245 

12 346,432 
346,432 

752,677 

1,322,131 

13 1,322,131 
1,322,131 

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying note. 
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2013 

s 

592,945 
131 ,274 
14,465 
11,779 

750,463 

34,464 

871 ,990 

906,454 

1 ,656, 917 

117,077 

25 ,680 
84,870 

227,627 

332,327 
332,327 

559,954 

1,096,963 

1,096,963 
1,096,963 



MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

Balance at 1 July 2012 

Surplus for the year 

Other comprehensive income for the year 

Balance at 30 June 2013 

Surplus for the year 

Other comprehensive income for the year 

Reallocation to reserve (see Note 13) 

Balance at 30 June 2014 

Office Building 
Reserve 

s 

150,000 

150,000 

Unappropriated 
Retained Surplus 

s 

601,799 

495,164 

495,164 

1,096,963 

225,168 

225,168 

(150,000) 

11172,131 

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

8 

Total 

s 

601,799 

495,164 

495,164 

1,096,963 

225,168 

225,168 

1,322,131 



MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

Note 2014 

s 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Cash receipts in the course of operations 14(c) 1,951,539 
Cash payments in the course of operations (2, 139,396) 
Interest received 17,576 
Grants received 597,135 
Interest paid (20, 902) 
Net cash provided by operating activities 14(b) 405,952 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Payment for property and equipment (17,343) 
Payment for investment property 
Cash used in investing activities (17,343) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from borrowing 
Repayment of borrowing (6,445) 
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities (6,445) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 382, 164 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 592,945 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 14(a) 975,109 

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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2013 

s 

1,402,592 
(1 ,627,696) 

21 ,771 
630,400 

(11 '197) 
415 ,870 

(460) 
(679,003) 
(679,463) 

360,000 
(1,993) 

358,007 

94,414 

498,531 

592,945 



MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements are a general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board and complies with the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) 
Act 2009 and Northern Territory of Australia Associations Act. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical basis except for investment property 
that has been measured at fair value. The concept of accrual accounting has been adopted in the 
preparation of the financial statements . The accounting policies have been consistently applied, 
unless otherwise stated. 

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is Master Builders Association of 
the Northern Territory Incorporated's functional and presentation currency. All amounts have been 
rounded off to the nearest dollar. 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial 
information satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of 
the underlying transaction or other event is reported. 

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation 
of the financial statements: 

(a) Going Concern Basis 

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. 

(b) New, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted 

The Association has adopted all of the new, revised or amending Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') that are mandatory for 
the current reporting period. 

Any new, revised or amending Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory 
have not been early adopted. 

Any significant impact on the accounting policies of the Association from the adoption of these 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations are disclosed in the relevant accounting policy. The 
adoption of these Accounting Standards and Interpretations did not have any significant impact on 
the financial performance or position of the Association. 

The following Accounting Standards and Interpretations are most relevant to the Association: 
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MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

(b) New, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted· continued ... 

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 

arising from AASB 13 

The Association has applied AASB 13 and its consequential amendments from 1 July 2013. The 
standard provides a single robust measurement framework, with clear measurement objectives, for 
measuring fair value using the 'exit price' and provides guidance on measuring fair value when a 
market becomes less active. The 'highest and best use' approach is used to measure non-financial 
assets whereas liabilities are based on transfer value. The standard requires increased disclosures 
where fair value is used. 

AASB 119 Employee Benefits (September 2011) and AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian 

The Association has applied AASB 119 and its consequential amendments from 1 July 2013. The 
standard eliminates the corridor approach for the deferral of gains and losses; streamlines the 
presentation of changes in assets and liabilities arising from defined benefit plans, including requiring 
remeasurements to be presented in other comprehensive income; and enhances the disclosure 
requirements for defined benefit plans. The standard also changed the definition of short-term 
employee benefits, from 'due to' to 'expected to' be settled within 12 months. Annual leave that is 
not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months is now discounted allowing for expected salary 
levels in the future period when the leave is expected to be taken. 

AASB 2012-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosures - Offsetting Financial 

Assets and Financial Liabilities 

The Association has applied AASB 2012-2 from 1 July 2013. The amendments enhance AASB 7 
'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' and requires disclosure of information about rights of set-off and 
related arrangements, such as collateral agreements. The amendments apply to recognised financial 
instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement. 

AASB 2012-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual Improvements 

2009-2011 Cycle 

The Association has applied AASB 2012-5 from 1 July 2013. The amendments affect five Australian 
Accounting Standards as follows: Confirmation that repeat application of AASB 1 'First-time Adoption 
of Australian Accounting Standards' is permitted; Clarification of borrowing cost exemption in AASB 1; 
Clarification of the comparative information requirements when an entity provides an optional third 
column or is required to present a third statement of financial position in accordance with AASB 101 
'Presentation of Financial Statements'; Clarification that servicing of equipment is covered by AASB 
116 'Property, Plant and Equipment', if such equipment is used for more than one period; clarification 
that the tax effect of distributions to holders of equity instruments and equity transaction costs in 
AASB 132 'Financial Instruments: Presentation' should be accounted for in accordance with AASB 112 
'Income Taxes': and clarification of the financial reporting requirements in AASB 134 'Interim Financial 
Reporting' and the disclosure requirements of segment assets and liabilities. 
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MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

(c) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, 
other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 

(d) Receivables 

(e) 

Trade receivables are recognised at original invoice amounts less an allowance for uncollectible 
amounts and have repayment terms between 30 and 90 days. Collectability of trade receivables is 
assessed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off. An 
allowance is made for doubtful debts where there is objective evidence that the Association will not 
be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms. Objective evidence of 
impairment include financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments or debts more than 60 days 
overdue. On confirmation that the trade receivable will not be collectible the gross carrying value of 
the asset is written off against the associated provision. 

Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value represents 
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in 
marketing, selling and distributing the goods. 

When the net realisable value of the inventories is lower than the cost, the Association provides for 
an allowance for the decline in the value of the inventory and recognises the write-down as an 
expense in the profit and loss statement. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of 
inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the 
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs. 

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in 
the period in which the related revenue is recognised. 

(f) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable in bringing the asset to 
its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after such asset has 
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs are normally charge to 
profit or loss in the period they are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that 
the expenditures have resulted to increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained 
from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of 
performance, the expenditures are capitalised as an addition of property, plant and equipment. 

Depreciation on the assets is calculated on a diminishing value basis over the estimated useful life of 
the asset as follows: 

Motor vehicles 
Office equipment 
Furniture and fittings 

Kitchen assets 

12 

5 years 

3-8 years 
3-8 years 
3 years 



MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if 
appropriate, at each reporting date. 

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal, when the item is no longer used in 
the operations of the Association or when it has no sale value. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised. 

(g) Intangibles 

Intangible assets with finite lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis 
over their estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed at 
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on 
a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are 
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The useful life of the Association's website 
upgrade is 3 years. 

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are 
recognised in profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Website upgrade cost is accounted for as 'Other noncurrent asset" in the statement of financial 
position. The website is still under development as at 30 June 2014. 

(h) Investment Property 

Investment properties principally comprise of freehold land and buildings held for long-term rental 
and capital appreciation that are not occupied by the Association. Investment properties are initially 
recognised at cost , including transaction costs, and are subsequently remeasured annually at fair 
value, based on similar assets, location and market conditions. Movements in fair value are 
recognised directly to profit or loss. 

Investment properties are derecognised when disposed of or when there is no future economic 
benefit expected. 

(i) Investment in Associate 

An associate is an entity over which the Association has significant influence and that is neither a 
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the 
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those 
policies. 
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MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements 
using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in 
which case it is accounted for in accordance with AASB 5 'Non-current Asset Held for Sale and 
Discontinued Operations. 'Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially 
recognised in the statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the 
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the share of losses 
of an associate exceeds the interest in that associate, the Association discontinues recognising its 
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that it has incurred legal 
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 

(j) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the 
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable value. 

Recoverable value is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell or value-in-use. The value-in­
use is the present value of the estimated future cash flows relating to the asset using a pretax 
discount rate specific to the asset or cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Asset that do 
not have independent cash flows are grouped together to form a cash-generating unit. 

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is 
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess 
of the share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over 
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

(k) Trade Payables 

Trade payables and other accounts payables are recognised when the Association becomes obliged to 
make future payments resulting from the purchase of goods and services. 

(I) Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, net of transaction 
costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised costs using the effective interest method. 

When there is an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after 
the reporting date, the borrowings are classified as non-current . 
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MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

(m) Employee Benefit Provisions 

Wages and Salaries and Annual Leave 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be 
settled within 12 months of reporting date are recognised in respect of employees' services rendered 
up to balance sheet date and measured at amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are 
settled. Liabilities for wages and salaries are included as part of Trade and other payables" and 
liabilities for annual leave are included as part of 'Provisions' in the statement of financial position. 

(n) Goods and Services Tax 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of Goods and Service Tax (GST) except where GST 
incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which 
case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense 
item. 

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST 
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables 
in the statement of financial position. 

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing 
or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the tax authority, are presented as 
operating cash flows. 

(o) Income Tax 

The Association is exempt from income tax under section 50.1 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 
1997 however still has obligation for Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the Goods and Services Tax (GST). 

(p) Fair value measurement 

The Association measures financial instruments, such as, financial asset as at fair value through the 
profit and loss, available for sale financial assets, and non-financial assets such as land and buildings 
and investment properties, at fair value at each balance sheet date. Also, fair values of financial 
instruments measured at amortised cost are disclosed in Note 20A. As at 30 June 2014 and 2013, the 
table below shows financial statement items measured at fair value: 

Investment property 

2014 

s 
610,000 

2013 

$ 
679,003 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Association. The fair value 
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Association uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
• Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
• Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
• Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Association determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re­
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as land and buildings and 
investment properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and 
whether professional standards are maintained. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the 
Association has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics 
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy. 

(q) Revenue Recognition 
(i) Grants 

Grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Association will comply with 
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received . 

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the 
Association recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to 
compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Association should 
purchase, construct otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the 
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis 
over the useful lives of the related assets. 

Grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose 
of giving immediate financial support to the Association with no future related costs are recognised 
in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable. 
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(ii) Subscriptions 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

Revenue from subscriptions is accounted for on an accrual basis and is recorded as revenue in the 
year to which it relates. 

(ii) Rent 

Rent revenue from investment property is recognised on a straight line basis over the lease of term. 

(iii) Management fee 
Management fee is recognised when services are rendered. 

(iv) Other revenue 

Other revenue is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established. 

(r) Financial Instruments 
Recognition 
Financial instruments are initially measured at cost on trade date, which includes transaction costs, 
when the related contractual rights and obligations exist. Subsequent to initial recognition these 
instruments are measured as set out below: 

Financial Assets 

Loans and Receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 
are not quoted in an active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method. 

Financial Liabilities 
Non-derivative financial liabilities, including loans and borrowings, are recognised at amortised cost, 
comprising original debt less principal payments and amortisation. 

Derecognitfon of financial assets 

The Association derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Association neither transfers nor retains substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, it recognises its 
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the 
Association retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial 
asset, it continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for 
the proceeds received. 

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying 
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss 
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in 
profit or loss. 

17 



MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

Impairment 

At the end of each reporting period the Association assesses whether there is any indication that 
individual assets are impaired. Where impairment indicators exist, recoverable amount is determined 
and impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss where the asset's carrying value exceeds its 
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and 
value in use. For the purpose of assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

(s) Leases 
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Where an asset is acquired by means of a finance lease, the asset is capitalised at either the fair 
value of the lease property or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments at the 
inception of the contract and a liability is recognised at the same time and for the same amount. 

The discount rate used is the interest rate implicit in the lease. Leased assets are amortised over the 
period of the lease. Lease payments are allocated between the principal component and the interest 
expense. 

Operating lease payments are expensed on a straight-line basis which is representative of the pattern 
of benefits derived from the leased assets. 

Rental revenue from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added 
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. 

(t) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting standards requires the use of 
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the 
process of applying the Association's accounting policies. 

Estimates and Assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 
balance sheet date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 

Provision for impairment of receivables 
The provision for impairment of receivables assessment requires degree of estimation and 
judgement. The level of provision is assessed by taking into account the ageing of receivables, 
historical collection of rates and specific knowledge of the individual debtors financial position. 
Provision for impaired receivables amounted to nil as at 30 June 2014 (2013: $11 ,240). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Association assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the 
Association that may lead to impairment of assets. When an impairment trigger exists, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is determined. 

No impairment has been recognised in respect of property and equipment, investment property and 
investment in associate for the year ended 30 June 2014 (2013: nil). 

Estimation of useful lives of assets 
The Association determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for its 
property and equipment. The useful lives could change significantly as a result of technical 
innovations or some other event. The depreciation and amortisation charge will increase where the 
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or technically obsolete or non-strategic assets 
that have been abandoned or sold will be written off or written down. 

Fair value of investment property 

The fair value of completed investment property has been determined on a market value basis by by 
accredited independent valuers. In arriving at the estimates of market values, the valuers have used 
their market knowledge and professional judgement and not only relied on historical transactional 
comparables. 

As at 30 June 2014, investment property is valued at $610,000 (2013: $679,003). 

Evaluation of the Association's significant influence over its investment in MBA Insurance Pty 
Ltd(MBAIS) 

Under AASB 128, a holding of 20% or more of the voting power of the investee is presumed to give 
rise to significant influence, unless it can be clearly demonstrated that this is not the case. 
Conversely, a holding of less than 20% of the voting power is presumed not to give rise to significant 
influence, unless it can be clearly demonstrated that there is in fact significant influence. AASB 28 
states that the exercise of significant influence will usually be evidenced by way of representation on 
the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the investee, among others. The Association 
believes that it exercises significant influence over the financial and operating policies of MBAIS by 
way of representation on the board of directors. Accordingly, the Association accounted for its 
investment in MBAIS as investment in associate in the financial statements. 

(u) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet mandatory or early adopted 

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but 
are not yet mandatory, have not been early adopted by the Association for the annual reporting 
period ended 30 June 2014. The Association's assessment of the impact of these new or amended 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations, most relevant to the Association, are set out below. 
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AASB 9 Financial Instruments and its consequential amendments 

This standard and its consequential amendments are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2017 and completes phases I and Ill of the IASB's project to replace lAS 39 (AASB 
139) 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This standard introduces new 
classification and measurement models for financial assets, using a single approach to determine 
whether a financial asset is measured at amortised cost or fair value. The accounting for financial 
liabilities continues to be classified and measured in accordance with AASB 139, with one exception, 
being that the portion of a change of fair value relating to the entity's own credit risk is to be 
presented in other comprehensive name unless it would create an accounting mismatch. Chapter 6 
'Hedge Accounting' supersedes the general hedge accounting requirements in AASB 139 and provides a 
new simpler approach to hedge accounting that is intended to more closely align with risk 
management activities undertaken by entities when hedging financial and non-financial risks. The 
Association will adopt this standard and the amendments from 1 July 2017 but the impact of its 
adoption is yet robe assessed by the Association. 

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards- Offsetting Financial Assets and 

Financial Liabilities 

The amendments are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. 
The amendments add application guidance to address inconsistencies in the application of the 
offsetting criteria in AASB 132 'Financial Instruments: Presentation', by clarifying the meaning of 
'currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off; and clarifies nth some gross settlement systems 
may be considered to be equivalent to net settlement. The adoption of the amendments from 1 July 
2014 will not have a material impact on the Association. 

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136- Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 

These amendments are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. 
The disclosure requirements of AASB 136 'Impairment of Assets' have been enhanced to require 
additional information about the fair value measurement when the recoverable amount of impaired 
assets is based on fair value less costs of disposals. Additionally, if measured using a present value 
technique, the discount rate is required to be disclosed. The adoption of these amendments from 1 
July 2014 may increase the disclosures by the Association. 

AASB 2013-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards- Novation of Derivatives and 

Continuation of Hedge Accounting 

These amendments are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 
and amends AASB 139 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' to permit continuation of 
hedge accounting in circumstances where a derivative (designated as hedging instrument) is novated 
from one counter party to a central counterparty as a consequence of laws or regulations. The 
adoption of these amendments from 1 July 2014 will not have a material impact on the Association. 
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Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle 

These amendments are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 and 
affects several Accounting Standards as follows: Amends the definition of 'vesting conditions' and 
'market condition' and adds definitions for performance condition' and 'service condition' in AASB 2 
'Share-based Payment'; Amends AASB 3 'Business Combinations' to clarify that contingent 
consideration that is classified as an asset or liability shall be measured at fair value at each 
reporting date; Amends AASB 8 'Operating Segments' to require entities to disclose the judgements 
made by management in applying the aggregation criteria; Clarifies that AASB 8 only requires a 
reconciliation of the total reportable segments assets to the entity's assets, if the segment assets are 
reported regularly; Clarifies that the issuance of AASB 13 'Fair Value Measurement' and the amending 
of AASB 139 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' and AASB 9 'Financial Instruments' 
did not remove the ability to measure short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest 
rate at their invoice amount, if the effect of discounting is immaterial; Clarifies that in AASB 
116'Property, Plant and Equipment' and AASB 138 'Intangible Assets', when an asset is revalued the 
gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation of the carrying 
amount (i.e. proportional restatement of accumulated amortisation); and Amends AASB 124 'Related 
Party Disclosures' to clarify that an entity providing key management personnel services to the 
reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity is a 'related party' of the reporting entity. 
The adoption of these amendments from 1 July 2014 will not have a material impact on the 
Association. 

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle 

These amendments are applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 and 
affects four Accounting Standards as follows: Clarifies the 'meaning of effective IFRSs' in AASB 1 'First­
time Adoption of Australian Accounting Standards'; Clarifies that AASB 3 'Business Combination' 
excludes from its scope the accounting for the formation of a joint arrangement in the financial 
statements of the joint arrangement itself; Clarifies that the scope of the portfolio exemption in 
AASB 13 'Fair Value Measurement' includes all contracts accounted for within the scope of AASB 
139'Financiallnstruments: Recognition and Measurement' or AASB 9 'Financial Instruments', regardless 
of whether they meet the definitions of financial assets or financial liabilities as defined in AASB 132 
'Financial Instruments: Presentation'; and Clarifies that determining whether a specific transaction 
meets the definition of both a business combination as defined in AASB 3 'Business Combinations' and 
investment property as defined in AASB 140 'Investment Property' requires the separate application of 
both standards independently of each other. The adoption of these amendments from 1July2014 will 
not have a material impact on the Association. 

(v) Required Disclosures Under Section 253 Reporting Guidelines But Not Applicable 

The Association did not have activities during the year for the following required disclosures under 
Section 253 of Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act of 2009: 

i. Business combinations; 
ii. Fees incurred as consideration for or payables to employers making payroll deductions of 

membership subscriptions; 
iii. Fees and allowances paid to persons to attend to conferences or other meeting as a representative of 

the Association; 
iv. Legal costs or other litigation expenses incurred or payables in respect of legal costs and other 

expenses related to litigation or other legal matters; 
v. Penalties imposed under the RO Act; and, 
vi. Donations received or made to other parties. 
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MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

2 (a) 

(b) 

(c) 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

2014 
:) 

Revenue 

Administration fee 15(b) 836,500 
Commission MBAIS 87,518 
Government grants 465,134 
HRIIR income 78,243 
Membership and subscriptions 307,978 
Marketing, functions and events 148,465 
Training and projects 393,947 

2,317,785 

Share in profit or loss of associate 8 75,179 

Other income 
Interest and finance 17,576 
Office rental income 21,434 
Miscellaneous income 26,117 
Rental income from investment property 8 36,695 

101,822 

Total Revenue 2,494,786 

3 (a) Auditors' Remuneration 

Audit services 

Accounting services 

22 

8,000 

8,000 

2013 
~ 

410,000 
81 ,598 

699,065 
109,219 
301,799 
327,233 
295,087 

2,224,001 

72,987 

21,771 
15,971 
26,513 
14,192 
78,447 

2,375,435 

6,600 
3,249 
9,849 
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(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

2014 
s 

Employee expenses - Committee of Management 

Wages and salaries 

Superannuation 

Leave and other entitlements 

Separation and redundancies 

Other employee expenses 

Employee expenses - Management 

Wages and salaries 390,998 
Superannuation 33,218 
Leave and other entitlements (54,303) 
Separation and redundancies 

Other employee expenses 

369,913 

Employee expenses - Other staff 

Wages and salaries 486,468 
Superannuation 44,706 
Leave and other entitlements 23,821 
Separation and redundancies 

Other employee expenses 

554,995 

2013 
s 

305,043 
27,454 
30,818 

363,315 

494,103 
43,823 

2,713 

540,639 

(e) Administration costs 

This is the first full year of operations of Master Builder Fidelity Fund (MBFF). In the previous year, 
MBFF operated for 6 months and as as result the figures for both financial year are not necessarily 
comparable. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash on hand 

Cash deposits with banks 

Short-term investments 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

700 
318,727 
655,682 
975,109 

431 
592,514 

592,945 

5 Trade and other receivables 

Trade receivables 116,632 142,514 
(11 ,240) Provision for doubtful debts 

Goods and services tax 

Total receivables 

Analysis of allowance account 

Opening Balance 

Provisions for doubtful receivables 

Receivables written off during the year 

Closing balance 

23 

116,632 131,274 

116,632 131 ,274 

11,240 
11 ,240 

(11,240) 
11,240 
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7 

8 

MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

2014 
$ 

Inventory 

Standards and contracts - at cost 5,879 

Total inventory 5,879 

Property and equipment 
Motor vehicles 40,774 
Less accumulated depreciation (28,302) 
Total motor vehicles 12,472 

Furniture and fixtures 29,951 
Less accumulated depreciation (24,306) 
Total furniture and fixtures 5,645 

Office machines 48,081 
Less accumulated depreciation (38,889) 
Total office machines 9,192 

Kitchen assets 1,460 
Less accumulated depreciation (72) 
Total kitchen assets 1,388 
Total property and equipment 28,697 

Reconciliation 
Carrying value at beginning of the year 34,464 
Additions 5,317 
Disposals 
Depreciation (11,084) 
Carrying value at end of year 28,697 

Investments 

Investment in Associate 

Shares in MBA Insurance Services Pty Ltd 192,987 
Share in profit or loss 75,179 

268,166 
Investment property 

Sentinel Investment Unit 679,003 
Decrease in value (69,003) 

610,000 
878,166 

24 

2013 
$ 

14,465 

14,465 

40,774 
(23,309) 
17,465 

29,951 
(22,890) 

7,061 

44,224 
(34,286) 

9,938 

34,464 

56,965 
461 

(22, 962) 
34,464 

120,000 
72,987 

192,987 

679,003 

679,003 
871,990 



MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

The Association owns 19% and has significant influence to Master Builder Insurance Services Pty Ltd 
(MBAIS). Summary of the financial information of MBAIS is as follows: 

Statement of financial position: 
Assets 
Liabilities 
Net Assets 

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income 

Income 
Expenses 
Net surplus 

Share of associate's net surplus 
Share of associate's net surplus before tax 

2014 
$ 

12,977,245 
11,569,370 

1,407,875 

8,255,462 
7,872,028 

383,434 

75,179 

2013 

s 

11,174,152 
10,112,725 
1,061,427 

6,917,600 
6,646,761 

270,839 

72,987 

The valuation of The Sentinel Investment Unit, the investment property, were performed by an 
accredited independent valuer with a recognised and relevant professional qualification and with 
recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued. 

The fair value of completed investment property has been determined on a market value basis. In 
arriving at their estimates of market values, the valuers have used their market knowledge and 
professional judgement and not only relied on historical transactional comparables. 

The highest and best use of the investment properties is not considered to be different from its 
current use. 

Rental income earned and received from the investment properties during the year was $36,695 
(2013: $14, 192). 

Direct expenses incurred in relation to the investment properties that generated rental income 
during the year was $7,552 (2013: $4,009) . During the year and as at the year-end, no restrictions on 
the realisability of investment property or the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal were 
present. The Association does not have any contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop 
investment property or for repairs, maintenance or enhancements. 

The Sentinel Investment Unit was purchased in November 2012 and the estimated fair value assumed 
its cost as at 30 June 2013. 

The fair value of investment property is included within Level 2 (see Note 20b) . 

Minimum lease payments for the investment property is disclosed in Note 17. 
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MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

9 Trade and other payables 

Trade creditors 
Goods and services tax 
Unearned revenue 
Other payables 

Trade and other payables 

10 Grant liabilities 

CAMS Grant Funding Mentoring 

D.O.B Funding (Cert IV) 
Total grant liabilities 

11 Provisions 

(a) Employee expenses- Committee of Management 
Annual leave 

Long service leave 
Separation and redundancies 
Other 

(b) Employee expenses- Management and Other Staff 

Annual leave 
Long service leave 
Separation and redundancies 

Other 

12 Borrowing 

Current 
Noncurrent 

2014 

s 

36,035 
16,764 

128,532 
47,278 

228,609 

19,501 
112,500 
132,001 

40,505 

40,505 

5,130 

346,432 
351,562 

2013 

s 

41,554 
7,870 

27,360 
40,293 

117,077 

84,870 

84,870 

25,680 
332,327 
358,007 

The borrowings account pertains to the loan from Commonwealth Bank availed in 2013 with a fixed 
interest rate of 5.89% per annum for three years, and secured by the Sentinel Investment Unit. The 
principal and interest of the loan is payable monthly within 30 years. Interest expense paid for the 
loan amounted to $20,902 for the year ended 30 June 2014 (2013: $11,917). 

13 Unappropriated retained surplus 

Balance at beginning of the financial year 

Total comprehensive income 
Reallocation to reserve 
Balance at the end of the financial year 

1 ,096, 963 
225,168 

(150,000) 
1,172,131 

601,799 
495,164 

1,096,963 

The Executive Committee approved to establish a sinking fund for the purpose of constructing a 
MBANT office building at some stage in the future with a transfer from the retained surplus to 
reserve in the amount of $150,000. 
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(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the f inancial year as shown in the Statement of Cash flows is 

reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows: 

2014 2013 
$ s 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents 

Cash on hand 700 431.00 
Cash deposits with banks 318,727 592,514.00 
Short-term investments 655,682 
Balance at the end of the year 975,109 592,945.00 

Reconciliation of surplus for the year to net cash 
provided by operating activities 

Surplus for the year 225,168 495,164 
Add I (less) non-cash items 

Depreciation 11,084 22,962 

Provision for bad debts (write-off) (11,240) 11 ,240 

Decrease in value of investment property 69,003 
Share in profi t or loss in associate (75, 179) (72,987) 

Net cash provided by operating activities before change 
in assets and liabilities 218,836 456,379 

Change in assets and liabilities 
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables 25,882 (68, 109) 
Decrease in inventories 8,586 3,979 

Increase in prepayments (46,520) (11 ,779) 

Decrease in trade and other payables 111,532 76,435 

Increase (decrease) in unexpended grants 132,001 (68,665) 

Increase (decrease) in provisions (44,365) 27,630 

Net cash provided by operating activit ies 405,952 415,870 

Grant Received 

Grant received 597,135 630,400 

27 



MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

15 Related Party Disclosures 

(a) Transactions with Related Parties 

The following persons held positions as Committee of Management during the reporting period: 

Dick Guit 
Russet Lutzke 
Paul Nowland 
John Brears 
Michael Hatton 
Charles Wright 

(b) Balances with Related Parties 

(i) Amounts Payable to Related Parties 

Other Branches - Current 
Master Builders Association of NSW Pty Ltd 
Master Builders Association Victoria 

2014 

s 

Outstanding payables are non interest bearing and are normally on a 30 day terms. 

(ii) Amounts Receivable from Related Parties 

Other Branches - Current 
Master Builders Fidelity Fund 
MBA Insurance Services Pty Ltd 

78,192 
8,454 

86,646 

2013 

s 

148 

60,325 
1,317 

61,642 

Outstanding receivables are unsecured, interest free, settlement occurs in cash and generally have 
30 day terms. 

The following revenue transactions took place with related parties during the reporting period: 

Master Builders Fidelity Fund - administration fee 
MBA Insurance Services Pty Ltd - sponsorship income 
MBA Insurance Services Pty Ltd - commission 

28 

836,500 

87,518 
924,018 

410,000 
8,000 

81,598 
499,598 



MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

Balances with Related Parties - continued ... 

2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
The following expense transactions took place with related parties during the reporting period: 

Master Builders - NSW 
Master Builders Association of WA 
Master Builders Association of Queensland 
Master Builders Association Victoria 
Master Builders Australia Incorporated 
Master Builders Fidelity Fund 

(c) Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) with Related Parties 

Master Builders Association of NSW Pty Ltd 
Master Builders Association Victoria 
Master Builders Association of WA 
Master Builders Association of Queensland 
Master Builders Australia Incorporated 
Master Builders Fidelity Fund 
MBA Insurance Services Pty Ltd 

(d) Key Management Personnel Compensation 

Key Management Compensation Information 

Short term employee benefits 
Other benefits 

16 Compliance with Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

Information to be provided to members or General Manager 

1,206 

43 
450 

81' 171 
401,924 
484,794 

(1,206) 
(598) 

(43) 
(81,171) 
494,900 

79,064 
490,946 

369,913 

369,913 

4,053 
761 

3,380 
79,422 

110,911 
198,527 

(4,273) 
(3,777) 

(761) 

(79,422) 

238,764 
90,681 

241,212 

363,315 

363,315 

The information that is prescribed by the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 is available 
to members on request. Specifically subsections 272(1 ), (2) and (3) require the following: 

(1) A member of a reporting unit, or the General Manager, may apply to the reporting unit for specified 
prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available to the person making 
the application. 

(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the manner in 
which, the information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 days after the 
application is given to the reporting unit. 

(3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection (1 ). 
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MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

17 Commitments and contingencies 

18 

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June are as follows: 

2014 2013 

$ s 
Operating lease commitments - as lessee 

Within one year 84,600 84,600 

After one year but not more than five years 338,400 338,400 

More than five years 559,461 644,056 
982,461 1,067,056 

Operating lease commitments - as lessor 

Within one year 21,279 21,279 

After one year but not more than five years 
More than five years 

21,279 21 ,279 

Events Subsequent the Financial Reporting Date 

No matters have arisen since the end of the financial year which have significantly affected or may 
significantly affect the operations, results of operations and the state of affairs of the Association in 
subsequent financial years. 

The carrying amount of assets and liabilities as recorded in the financial statements and the 
realisation and settlement amounts of assets and liabilities have not changed materially since end of 
reporting date. 
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MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
30 JUNE 2014 

19 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

(a) General objectives, policies and processes 

In common with all other businesses, the Association is exposed to risks that arise from its use of financial 
instruments. This note describes the Association's objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks 
and the methods used to measure them. Further quantitative information in respect of these risks is presented 
throughout these financial statements. 

There have been no substantive changes in the Association's exposure to financial instrument risks, its 
objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks or the methods used to measure them from previous 
periods unless otherwise stated in this note. 

The Association hold the following financial instruments: 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Trade and other receivables 

Financial liabilities 
Trade and other payables 

Grant liabilities 
Borrowings 

2014 

$ 

975,109 

116,632 

1,091 '741 

228,609 

132,001 

351,562 

712,172 

2013 

$ 

592,945 

142,514 

735,459 

117,077 

358,007 

475,084 

The Committee of Management has overall responsibility for the determination of risk management objectives 
and polices and, whilst retaining ultimate responsibility for them, they have delegated the authority for 
designing and operating processes that ensure the effective implementation of the objectives and policies to 
the management team. The Association's risk management policies and objectives are therefore designed to 
minimise the potential impacts of these risks on the results of the Association where such impacts may be 
material. The Committee of Management receives monthly reports from management through which they 
review the effectiveness of the processes put in place and the appropriateness of the objectives and policies 
set. 

The overall objective of the Committee of Management is to set polices that seek to reduce risk as far as 
possible without unduly affecting the Association's flexibility. Further details regarding these policies are set 
out below: 
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MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
30 JUNE 2014 

19 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT- continued ... 

(b) Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that the other party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge their obligation 
resulting in the Association incurring a financial loss. Credit risk arises from cash assets and deposits with 
financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Association's outstanding receivables and committed 
transactions. For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a minimum rating of "A" 
are accepted. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 

2014 

$ 
974,409 
116,632 

1,091,041 

Credit quality of financial instruments not past due or individually determined as impaired 

Not past due Past due or Not past 
nor Impaired Impaired due nor 

Impaired 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 

2014 
$ 

974,409 
116,632 

1,091,041 

Ageing of financial assets that were past due but not impaired for 2014 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 

0 to 30 days 31 to 60 

$ 
592,514 
96,802 

689,316 

days 

$ 

18,510 
18,510 

Ageing of financial assets that were past due but not impaired for 2013 

2014 
$ 

61 to 90 
days 

$ 

1,320 
1,310 

0 to 30 days 31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 

s 
974,409 

92,436 
1,066,845 

30 

s s 

17,260 1,358 
17,260 1,358 

2013 

s 
592,514 
131,274 
723,788 

90+ days 

$ 

90+ days 

s 

20,220 
20,120 

2013 

$ 
592,514 
142,514 
735,028 

Past due or 
impaired 

2013 

$ 

11,240 
11,140 

Total 

s 
592,514 
116,632 
709,146 

Total 

s 
974,409 

131,274 
1,105,683 



MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
30 JUNE 2014 

19 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued ... 
(c) Liquidity risk 

Vigilant liquidity risk management requires the Association to maintain sufficient liquid assets (mainly cash and 
cash equivalents) and available borrowing facilities to be able to pay debts as when they become due and 
payble. 

The Association manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and available borrowing facilities 
by continuously monitoring actual and forecast cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets 
and liabilities. 

Maturity Analysis - 2014 

Financial Liabilities 

Trade and other payables 

Grant liabilities 
Borrowings 

TOTAL 

Maturity Analysis - 2013 

Financial Liabilities 

Trade and other payables 
Grant liabilities 

TOTAL 

(c) Market risk 

Carrying 
Amount 

$ 
228,609 

132,001 

351,562 

712,172 

Carrying 
Amount 

s 
117,077 
358,007 

475,084 

Contractual 
Cash flows 

$ 
228,609 

132,001 

351,562 

712,172 

Contractual 
Cash flows 

s 
117,077 
358,007 

475,084 

< 6 mths 6- 12 mths 1-3 years > 3 years 

$ $ $ $ 
228,609 

132,001 

10,684 21,367 64,101 255,410 

371,294 21,367 64,101 255,410 

< 6 mths 6- 12 mths 1-3 years > 3 years 

s s s s 
117,077 

12,840 25,680 77,040 242,447 

129,917 25,680 77,040 242,447 

The Association is exposed to market risk though its use of financial instruments and specifically to interest rate 
risk. At 30 June 2014, the Association is not significantly exposed to fair value interest rate risk from its bank 
borrowing on the period it is issued at fixed interest as its issuance is close to prevailing market rate. A change 
in interest rates on the fixed portion of the debt portfolio impacts the net financial instrument position . On the 
period that the borrowing is charged at variable rate, a change in interest rates on the variable portion to the 
debt portfolio impacts the interest incurred and cash flows, but not impact the net financial instrument 
position. 

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of profit and the funds to a reasonably possible change in interest 
rates of + /- 2%. The changes are considered to be a reasonably possible based on observation of current market 
conditions. The calculations are based on a change in the average market interest rate for each period, and the 
financial instruments held at each reporting date that are sensitive to changes in interest rates. 

2014 

2013 

Profit for the year/Fund 

+2% 

$5,968 

$3,802 

31 

-2% 

-$5,968 

-$3,802 



MASTER BUILDERS ASSOCIATION NORTHERN TERRITORY INCORPORATED 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
30 JUNE 2014 

20 Fair value measurement 
(a) Financial assets and liabilities 

Management of the Association assessed that cash, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current 
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these 
instruments. 

Fair value of the Association's interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using a discounted cash 
flow method. The discount rate used reflects the issuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. 
The own performance risk as at 30 June 2014 was assessed to be insignificant. 

(b) Fair value hierarchy 

No financial assets and liabilities are recognised at fair value. 

The fair value of investment property is included within Level 2. 

21 Capital Management Policies and Procedures 

Management controls the capital of the Association to ensure that adequate cash flows are generated to fund its 
programs and the returns from investments are maximised. The management and Committee of Management 
ensure that the overall risk management strategy is in line with this objective. 

The Association's capital consists of financial liabilities, supported by financial assets. Management effectively 
manages the Associations capital by assessing the Association's financial risk and responding to changes in these 
risk and in the market. These responses may include the consideration of debt level. There have been no 
changes to the strategy by management to control the capital of the Association since prior year. 
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9 December 2014 

Mr Jeff Colver 

General Manager Operations 
Master Builders Association of the Northern Territory trading as Master Builders Northern Territory 
Sent via email:  gmo@mbant.com.au  

Dear Mr Colver, 

Lodgement of Financial Report - Reminder to lodge on or before 14 January 2015 

The Fair Work Commission’s (the FWC) records disclose that the financial year of the Master 

Builders Association of the Northern Territory trading as Master Builders Northern Territory (the 
reporting unit) ended on the 30 June 2014 

As you would be aware, the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act) requires 
that a reporting unit prepare and lodge its financial report by the due date, namely six months and 
14 days after the expiry date of its financial year (s.268).  For your reporting unit that requires 
lodgement of its financial report on or before 14 January 2015. 

The FWC encourages your reporting unit to lodge its financial report at the earliest opportunity in 
order to ensure compliance with its obligations.  Failure of a reporting unit to lodge its financial 
report is a breach of a civil penalty provision of the RO Act. This can result in the General Manager 
instituting an inquiry or investigation into a reporting unit’s non-compliance under Chapter 11, Part 
4 of the RO Act. The actions available to the General Manager following an investigation include 
issuing Federal Court legal proceedings for breach of a civil penalty provision. The orders available 
to the Federal Court include imposition of a pecuniary penalty on the organisation or individual 
officer, whose conduct led to the contravention, of up to $51,000 per contravention on the 

organisation and up to $10,200 per contravention on the individual officer.  

Should you seek any clarification in relation to the above, please contact me on (03) 8661 7936 or 
via email at robert.pfeiffer@fwc.gov.au.  

Yours sincerely, 

 

Robert Pfeiffer 

Senior Adviser 

Regulatory Compliance Branch 

 

 

 

mailto:gmo@mbant.com.au
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11 Exhibition Street 

Melbourne   VIC   3000 
GPO Box 1994 

Melbourne   VIC   3001 
 

Telephone : (03) 8661 7777 

Email : orgs@fwc.gov.au  

Internet : www.fwc.gov.au 

 

31 July 2014 

Mr Jeff Colver 

General Manager Operations 

Master Builders Association of the Northern Territory trading as Master Builders Northern Territory 

Sent by email:  gmo@mbant.com.au  

Dear Mr Colver, 

Re:  Lodgement of Financial Report - [FR2014/140] 
Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act)  

 
The financial year of the Master Builders Association of the Northern Territory trading as Master 
Builders Northern Territory (the reporting unit) ended on 30 June 2014. 

This is a courtesy letter to remind you of the obligation to prepare and lodge the financial report for the 
reporting unit by the due date, namely 15 January 2015 (being the expiry date of 6 months and 14 days 
from the end of the financial year), under s.268 of the RO Act. 

The RO Act sets out a particular chronological order in which financial documents and statements must 

be prepared, audited, provided to members and presented to a meeting. For your assistance, the 
attached Timeline/Planner summarises these requirements. 

Fact sheets and guidance notes in relation to financial reporting under the RO Act are provided on the 
Fair Work Commission website.  Further, the General Manager’s updated Reporting Guidelines, that 
apply to all financial reports prepared on or after 30 June 2014, are also available on the website.  For 
your convenience, our webinar video and slides on the Reporting Guidelines have also been placed on 
the website. 

The Fair Work Commission has also developed a model set of financial statements.  There is no 
requirement to use this model but it may be a useful resource to ensure compliance with the RO Act, 
the Reporting Guidelines and the Australian Accounting Standards.  All of the above information can be 

accessed through our website under Financial Reporting.  

The financial report and any statement of loans, grants or donations made during the financial year 
(statement must be lodged within 90 days of end of financial year) can be emailed to orgs@fwc.gov.au.  
A sample statement of loans, grants or donations is available at sample documents.   

It should be noted that s.268 is a civil penalty provision.  Failure to lodge a financial report may 

result in legal proceedings being issued with the possibility of a pecuniary penalty (up to $51,000 for a 
body corporate and $10,200 for an individual per contravention) being imposed upon an officer whose 
conduct led to the contravention and/or your organisation.   

Should you seek any clarification in relation to the above, please contact me on (03) 8661 7936 or via 
email at robert.pfeiffer@fwc.gov.au  .   

Yours sincerely, 

 
Robert Pfeiffer 
Senior Adviser 
Regulatory Compliance Branch 

mailto:gmo@mbant.com.au
https://www.fwc.gov.au/registered-organisations/compliance-governance/financial-reporting
mailto:orgs@fwc.gov.au
https://www.fwc.gov.au/registered-organisations/overview/registered-organisations-fact-sheets
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TIMELINE/ PLANNER 

 

Financial reporting period ending: /       /   

    

Prepare financial statements and Operating Report. 
   

 

   

(a) A Committee of Management Meeting must 
consider the financial statements, and if satisfied, 
pass a resolution declaring the various matters 
required to be included in the Committee of 
Management Statement. 

(b) A 
#
designated officer must sign the Statement 

which must then be forwarded to the auditor for 
consideration as part of the General Purpose 
Financial Report (GPFR). 

/       / 

  

As soon as practicable after end of financial 
year 

 

 

 

  

Auditor's Report prepared and signed and given to 
the Reporting Unit - s257 

/       / 

 Within a reasonable time of having received 
the GPFR 

(NB: Auditor’s report must be dated on or 
after date of Committee of Management 
Statement 

 

    

Provide full report free of charge to members – s265 

 The full report includes: 

 the General Purpose Financial Report (which 
includes the Committee of Management 
Statement); 

 the Auditor’s Report; and 

 the Operating Report. 

/      / 

 (a) if the report is to be presented to a General 

Meeting (which must be held within 6 months 
after the end of the financial year), the report 

must be provided to members 21 days before 

the General Meeting, 

                         or 

(b) in any other case including where the  report 
is presented to a Committee of Management 

meeting*, the report must be provided to 

members within 5 months of end of financial 

year. 

 

  

Present full report to:    

Within 6 months of end of financial year 
(a) General Meeting of Members - s266 (1),(2); OR /       /  

(b) where the rules of organisation or branch allow* - 
a Committee of Management meeting - s266 (3) /       / 

 

Within 6 months of end of financial year 
 

  

Lodge full report with the Fair Work Commission, 
together with the #Designated Officer’s certificate++ 
– s268 

/       / 

 

Within 14 days of meeting 

 

 

*  the full report may only be presented to a committee of management meeting if the rules of the reporting unit provide that a 
percentage of members (not exceeding 5%) are able to call a general meeting to consider the full report. 

#  The Committee of Management Statement  and the Designated Officer’s certificate must be signed by the Secretary or another 
officer who is an elected official and who is authorised under the rules (or by resolution of the organisation) to sign the 

statement or certificate – s243. 

++ The Designated Officer’s certificate must state that the documents lodged are copies of the documents provided to members and 
presented to a meeting in accordance with s266 – dates of such events must be included in the certificate. The certificate cannot 

be signed by a non-elected official. 

 
 


